
 

 

 

 

To,                                                                                                                                                  Date: September 19, 2024  

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex 

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400051. 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Subject: Clarification with Relation to Typographical error in Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24.  

Ref: TAC Infosec Limited (Symbol: TAC, ISIN: INE0SOY01013) 

We would like to bring to your attention a typographical error in Annexure E - Management Discussion and Analysis of 

our Annual Report for the year 2023-24. Due to an oversight by our design vendor, who was managing multiple reports 

simultaneously, an incorrect company name was inadvertently included in the section on threat risks and concerns. 

Unfortunately, this error was overlooked during the final proofing by our compliance team. 

 

We sincerely apologize to all stakeholders for this mistake. We have corrected the Annual Report and have sent the 

revised version to all shareholders. 

 

This is for your information and records.  

 

Thanking you, 

 

For, TAC Infosec Limited 

 

 

 

Trishneet Arora  

Chairman & Executive Director & CEO 

DIN: 07567604 

 

Place: Punjab 

 

Encl: A/a- 
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NOTICE OF 8th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighth (8th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of TAC Infosec Limited 
(“the Company” or “TAC”) will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 04:00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business.

The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company at 08th Floor, Plot No. C-203,  
Industrial Focal Point, Phase 8B, Mohali,  Punjab -160055, Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

 
Ordinary Business:

1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be 
and are hereby considered and adopted.”

AND

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024 and the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered 
and adopted.”
 
Ordinary Business:

2. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. CHARANJIT SINGH (DIN: 07567588) WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION 
AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT;

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Directors (other than 
Independent Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation. Mr. Charanjit Singh, Whole Time  Director who has 
been on the Board of the Company since August 08, 2016 and whose office is liable to retire at this AGM, being eligi-
ble, seeks re-appointment. Based on the performance evaluation and the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board recommends his re-appointment.

Therefore, members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the follow-
ing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, Mr. Charanjit Singh (DIN: 07567588), who retires by rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Whole Time 
Director, liable to retire by rotation.”

Registered office:
08th Floor, Plot No. C-203,  
Industrial Focal Point, Phase 8B, 
Mohali,  Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab Charanjit Singh
Whole Time Director

Trishneet Arora
Chairman, Executive Director 
& CEO

For and on behalf of Board of Di-
rectors TAC Infosec Limited
CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575
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DIN: 07567604 DIN: 07567588Date: September 07, 2024

 
Important Notes:

The Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has allowed conducting Annual General Meeting through 
Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) and dispended the personal presence of the mem-
bers at the meeting. Accordingly, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 
2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and 02/2022 dated May 05, 
2022, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and latest being 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (“MCA Circulars”) 
and Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/-
CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/ 
HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 
dated October 07, 2023 issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”) prescribing the proce-
dures and manner of conducting the Annual General Meeting through VC/OVAM. In terms of the said circulars, 
the 8th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members will be held through VC/OAVM. Hence, Members can 
attend and participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM only. The detailed procedure for participation in the meet-
ing through VC/OAVM is as per note no. 23 and available at the Company’s website: www.tacsecurity.com 

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re-
quirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, issued 
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director retiring by rotation seeking re-appoint-
ment at this Annual General Meeting (‘Meeting’ or ‘AGM’) is furnished as Annexure to this Notice.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility 
to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the Members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corpo-
rates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate 
thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 113 of the Act, Body Corporates/Institutional/Corporate members intending 
for their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send to the Company, on compa-
ny.secretary@tacsecurity.com with a copy marked to scsandcollp@gmail.com and evoting@nsdl.com. from their 
registered Email ID a scanned copy (PDF/ JPG format) of certified copy of the Board Resolution/ Authority Letter 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation 
at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will 
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Inves-
tors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM with-
out restriction on account of first come first served basis.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto;

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckon-
ing the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Man-
agement and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclo-
sure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the MCA Circulars & SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing 
facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this pur-
pose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitat-
ing voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.
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Electronic dispatch of Notice and Annual Report in accordance with the MCA General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated 
5th May, 2020 and 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 
dated 5th January, 2023, the financial statements (including Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report or other documents 
required to be attached therewith) for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 pursuant to section 136 of the 
Act and Notice calling the AGM pursuant to section 101 of the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder, such 
statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent only in electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/ Skyline Financial Services Private Limited or the Depository Partici-
pant(s). The physical copies of such statements and Notice of AGM will be dispatched only to those shareholders 
who request for the same.

The Notice has also been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.tacsecurity.com  & the website of the 
Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and is also made available on 
the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email addresses with 
the relevant Depository Participants.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, tele-
phone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank 
details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc.,

Members seeking clarifications on the Annual Report are requested to send in written queries to the Company at 
least one week before the date of the meeting. This would enable the Company to compile the information and 
provide the replies at the Meeting.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of 
any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their 
demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned De-
pository Participant and holdings should be verified.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of 
the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All docu-
ments referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members 
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. Monday, September 30, 2024. Members seek-
ing to inspect such documents can send an email to company.secretary@tacsecurity.com. 

SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OI-
AE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ 
CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), has established a common Online Dispute Res-
olution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to 
above-mentioned circulars, post exhausting the option to resolve their grievances with the RTA/ Company directly 
and through existing SCORES platform, the investors can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal 
(https://smartodr.in/login).

In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (List-
ing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Company has pro-
vided a facility to its members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting (“e-voting”) facili-
ty provided by the NSDL. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may partici-
pate in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The manner of voting remotely by members 
holding shares in dematerialised mode is provided in the instructions for e-voting section which forms part of this 
Notice. The Board has appointed M/s. SCS & Co LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scruti-
nize the e-voting in a fair and transparent manner.

The e-voting period commences on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Sunday, 
September 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, members holding shares in dematerialised form, as on 
cut-off date, i.e. as on Monday, September 23, 2024 may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module will 
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. A member will not be allowed to vote again on any resolutions on 
which vote have already been cast. 

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
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The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members present in the AGM through VC/ 
OAVM and who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting system during the AGM.

The Scrutinizer will submit their report to the Chairman of the Company (‘the Chairman’) or to any other person 
authorized by the Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes casted during the AGM and 
votes casted through remote e-voting). The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communi-
cated to the stock exchange, NSDL and will also be displayed on the Company’s website at www.tacsecurity.com. 

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting 
and count the same, and count the votes cast during the AGM, and shall make, not later than 2 Working days 
from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if 
any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 
result of the voting forthwith. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall be final.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website at www.tacsecu-
rity.com  and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com within two working days of the passing of the Resolu-
tions at the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company and shall also be communicated to the Stock Exchange 
where the shares of the Company are listed.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Sunday, Septem-
ber 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) 
i.e. on Monday, September 23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Monday, 
September 23, 2024.

According to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Adminis-
tration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations (as amended), and the MCA Circulars, the 
Company is providing the facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at 
the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL, as the Authorised e-voting 
agency for facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-vot-
ing as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books of the 
Company will not be closed. Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of 
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024 be enti-
tled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the 
Notice, who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only.

A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of the Notice 
of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024, shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote 
either electronically i.e. remote e-voting or e-voting system on the date of the AGM by following the procedure men-
tioned in this part.

The remote e-voting will commence on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Sunday, Septem-
ber 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, the members of the Company holding shares as on the Cut-off 
date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The members will not be able to cast their 
vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting module shall be disabled 
for voting by NSDL thereafter.

PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS AND PARTICIPAT-
ING AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM:
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v.

vi.

Once the vote on resolutions is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast 
the vote again.

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of the Com-
pany as on the Cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024.

The Company has appointed M/s. SCS & Co LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, to act as the Scrutinizer for con-
ducting the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent 
manner.

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM:

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual share-
holders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Deposi-
tories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their 
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After suc-
cessful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting ser-
vices and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-direct-
ed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/Ideas-
DirectReg.jsp
 
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Sharehold-
er/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL.

1.

2.

3.
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Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seam-
less voting experience.

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

4.

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 
users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/my-
easi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see 
the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provid-
er i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.
If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is avail-
able at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra-
tion

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslin-
dia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see 
e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

1.

2.

3.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.
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Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL help-
desk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com  or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL help-
desk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or con-
tact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
Your User ID is: Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 
    demat account with NSDL.

b) For Members who hold shares in 
     demat account with CDSL.

c) For Members holding shares in 
    Physical Form.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 12**************

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 
user ID is 101456001***

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Sharehold-
er/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

1.

Your User ID details are given below :4.

2.

3.
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Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communi-
cated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email 
and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physi-
cal form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.
 
If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered.

5.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evot-
ing.nsdl.com    

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@ns-
dl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL. 

6.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

7.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

(i)

(ii)

STEP 2: CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLY AND JOIN GENERAL MEETING ON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
who’s voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your 
vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join 
Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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1.

2.

3.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly autho-
rized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to scsandcollp@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload 
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to at evoting@nsdl.com. 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR 
PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND REGISTRATION OF E MAIL IDS FOR E- VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS 
SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to company.secretary@tacsecurity.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to company.secretary@tacsecurity.com

If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password 
for e- voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual share-
holders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Deposi-
tories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly 
in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

1.

2.

3.

4.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 08TH AGM ARE AS UNDER:

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the 08th AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e- 
voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the 08th AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 08th AGM. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.
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1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 08TH AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful 
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are 
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available 
in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do 
not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommend-
ed to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

For ease of conduct, Members who would like to ask questions may send their questions in advance at least seven 
(7) days before AGM mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at com-
pany.secretary@tacsecurity.com and register themselves as a speaker. Those Members who have registered them-
selves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM.  

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Address: 08th Floor, Plot No. C-203,  Industrial Focal Point, 
Phase 8B, Mohali,  Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821
Email: company.secretary@tacsecurity.com
Web: www.tacsecurity.com

CONTACT DETAILS:

Company

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi-110020.
E-mail: info@skylinerta.com
Website: www.skylinerta.com
Tel no.: 011-40450193-97/26812682-83

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Email: evoting@nsdl.com 
NSDL help desk 1800-222-990

e-Voting Agency & VC / OAVM

M/s SCS and Co LLP,
Ms. Anjali Sangtani (Membership No. A41942 C P No.: 23630) Partner
Email: scsandcollp@gmail.com; Mo No: +91 8128156833

Scrutinizer
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Annexure to Notice of 8th Annual General Meeting

Disclosure under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI for Item No.02

16/12/1966

Name Mr. Charanjit Singh

Date of Birth

He is founding member of the company. He is having experience of 
more than 6 years in finance management. He has a vast knowledge 
and experience in field of business processes, decision making, and 
entrepreneurship. He has handled diversified business and having 
good experience in various segments. He has adopted the good plan-
ning methods and executing aggressive strategies to achieve business 
goals.

Experience - Expertise in specific 
functional areas - Job profile and 
suitability

3,05,830 Equity sharesNo. of Shares held as on March 31, 2024 
including shareholding as a Beneficial 
Owner. 

Liable to retire by rotationTerms & Conditions

9,60,000 per annumRemuneration Last Drawn

25,00,000 per annumRemuneration sought to be paid

11 Meeting out of 11 Board Meetings Number of Board Meetings attended 
during the Financial Year 2023-24

01/08/2016Date of Original Appointment

08/01/2024Date of Appointment in current terms

NilDirectorships held in public companies 
including deemed public companies

Chairmanship: Nil
Membership:   Nil

Memberships/Chairmanships of 
committees of public companies

He is Father of Mr. Trishneet Arora Chairman Executive 
Director and CEO of the Company

Inter-se Relationship with other 
Directors.

Mr. Charanjit Singh is not debarred from holding the office of 
director pursuant to any SEBI order.

Information as required pursuant to 
NSE Circular No. L1ST/COMP/14/2018- 
19 dated June 20, 2018
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Dear Shareholders, 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Your Board of Directors is delighted to present the 08th report on the business and operations of your Company 
(“the Company”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. This report is accompanied by the audited financial 
statements, which provide a comprehensive overview of the Company’s financial performance and position 
during the year. We trust that the insights and information contained within these documents will offer a clear 
understanding of the Company’s achievements and strategic direction. 
 
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

The Audited Financial Statements of your Company as on March 31, 2024, are prepared in accordance with the 
relevant applicable Accounting Standards (“AS”) and Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and the provi-
sions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). 

Key highlights of standalone & Consolidated financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024, are 
summarized as under:  

Particulars  

Revenue From Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, 
Finance Cost and Tax 

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 

Less: Depreciation 

Less: Finance Cost 

Profit Before Tax  

Less: Current Tax 

Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 

Profit after Tax 

1161.79 

22.80 

1184.59 

508.42 

676.17 

24.97 

16.06 

635.14 

5.49 

(3.52) 

633.17 

1000.01 

9.54 

1009.55 

463.59 

545.96 

24.60 

8.82 

512.54 

- 

- 

512.54 

1161.79 

22.80 

1184.59 

508.55 

676.04 

24.97 

16.06 

635.01 

5.49 

(3.52) 

633.04 

- 

- 

- 

 
-

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Standalone-Year Ended 

31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

Consolidated-Year Ended 

31/03/2024  31/03/2023 
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Standalone Highlights of Operational Performance 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

During the year under review, the total income of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 was stood at 
Rs. 1184.59 Lakh as against the total income of Rs. 1009.55 Lakh for the previous financial year 2022-2023. The 
Total Income of the company was increased by 17.34% over previous year.  

Your Company has earned a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 633.17 Lakh during the year 2023-2024 as compared to Rs. 
1184.59 Lakhs in the previous financial year 2022-23. The profit of your Company  has increased about 23.54% as 
compared to previous financial year. The increase in profit is due to increase in other income of the Company as 
well as reduction in other expense of the Company over previous financial year. 

 
Consolidated Highlights of Operational Performance: 

The Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial results of following Sub-
sidiary Company: 

1. TAC Security INC 
The Company become subsidiary Company with effect from March 11, 2024 and the total consolidated income of 
your Company was Rs. 1184.59 Lakh, The Revenue from Operation of your Company was Rs. 1161.79 Lakh and 
your Company has earned a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 633.04 Lakh for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

 
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE: 

During the year, your Company has not apportioned any amount to other reserve. Total amount of net profit is 
carried to the Reserves & Surplus as shown in the Balance Sheet of your Company.

 
DIVIDEND:  

With a view to conserve and save the resources for future prospects of your Company, the Directors have decid-
ed not to declared any dividend for the financial year 2023-24. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, there is no amount of Dividend remaining un-
claimed / unpaid for a period of 7 (seven) years and/or unclaimed Equity Shares which are required to be trans-
ferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 
 
COMPANY BACKGROUND: 

Your Company was originally incorporated as ‘TAC Infosec Private Limited’ at Mohali, Punjab as a private limited 
company under the Companies Act, 2013, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated August 01, 2016, issued 
by the Registrar of Companies, Central Registration Centre. Thereafter, your Company was converted into a 
public limited company pursuant to a special resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting of the Share-
holders held on December 14, 2023, and consequently the name of your Company was changed to ‘TAC Infosec 
Limited’, pursuant to a fresh certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Chandigarh, on De-
cember 29, 2023. 

Your company is engaged in the business of providing risk-based vulnerability management and assessment solu-
tions, cybersecurity quantification and services of Penetration testing to organizations of any scale, size, and busi-
ness through “SaaS model”. Your company offers security software products and solutions both in India and inter-
nationally.   
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*As Company got listed on Emerge Platform of NSE on April 05, 2024, Fund utilisation for the Financial 
year 2023-24 is not applicable. 

 
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER AND LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES: 

The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on Friday, January 12, 2024, proposed the Initial Public Offer of 
not exceeding 28,29,600 (Twenty-Eight Lakhs Twenty-Nine Thousand and Six Hundred only) equity shares at such 
price as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Lead Manager. The Members of your 
Company had also approved the proposal of the Board of Directors in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held 
on Saturday, January 13, 2024.  

Pursuant to the authority granted by the Members of the Company, the Board of Directors had appointed Bee-
line Capital Advisors Private Limited as Lead Manager and Skyline Financial Services Private Limited as Registrar 
to the Issue and Share Transfer Agent for the proposed Public Issue. 

Your Company had applied to National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) for in-principal approval for listing 
its equity shares on the Emerge Platform of the NSE. National Stock Exchange of India Limited has, vide its letter 
dated, March 12, 2024, granted it’s In- Principal Approval to the Company. 

Your Company had filed Prospectus to the Registrar of the Company, Chandigarh on March 18, 2024. The Public 
Issue was opened on Wednesday, March 27, 2024 and closed on Tuesday, April 02, 2024. The Basis of Allotment 
was finalized by Company, Registrar to the issue and merchant banker in consultation with the National Stock Ex-
change of India Limited on April 03, 2024. The Company had applied for listing of its total equity shares to Nation-
al Stock Exchange of India Limited and it has granted its approval vide its letter dated April 04, 2024. The trading 
of equity shares of the Company commenced on April 05, 2024 at Emerge Platform of NSE.  

 
UTILISATION OF IPO PROCEEDS:

The Company raised funds of Rs. 2,999.38 Lakhs through Initial Public Offering (IPO) during Financial 
year 2024-25.  

 Sr. No.  

1.

2.

3.

4.

- 

1,865.00 

744.38 

390.00 

2,999.38 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Acquisition of TAC Security Inc (Delaware, USA) 
and making it Wholly Owned Subsidiary thereon 

Investment in Human resources and Product 
Development 

General Corporate Purposes 

Public Issue Expenses 

Total 

Original Object Original Allocation 
Funds Utilized as 
on March 31, 2024* 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

During the year, the Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the same line of busi-
ness as per the main object of the Company. 

 
SHARE CAPITAL: 

During the year under review, the following changes were made in authorized and paid-up share capital of 
the company.  

 
Authorized Capital

At the beginning of the Financial year 2023-24, the Authorized share capital of your company was Rs. 50,00,000/- (Ru-
pees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 5,00,000 (Five lakh) Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each. 

During the Financial year 2023-24 the following changes had occurred in the Authorized capital of your company:

 

 
Whereas During the Financial year 2023-24 the following changes had occurred in the Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid up capital of the company: 

 
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital: 

Authorized share capital of your company was increased from Rs. 50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) divided 
into 5,00,000 (Five lakh) Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 13,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirteen Crore 
Only) divided into 1,30,00,000 (One Crore Thirty Lakhs) Equity Shares each of Rs. 10/- each vide Ordinary Resolu-
tion passed in Extra Ordinary General Meeting by the members of the Company on December 01, 2023. 

Accordingly, as on the date of Report the current Authorized share capital of your company stands at Rs. 
13,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirteen Crore Only) divided into 1,30,00,000 (One Crore Thirty Lakhs) Equity Shares each 
of Rs. 10/- each. 

At the Beginning of the Financial year 2023-24, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital of your company was 
Rs. 45,00,000 (Rupees Forty-Five Lakhs Only) divided into 4,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 
After Closure of the financial year; 

Pursuant to the Initial Public Offer of Equity Shares by the Company, the Board of Directors, in their meeting 
held on April 03,2024 has allotted total 28,29,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at price of Rs. 106/- per Equity 
Share (Including a share premium of Rs. 96/- Per Equity Share) to the successful allottees, whose list have been 
finalized by the Company, the Registrar to the issue and merchant banker in consultation with National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited. 

Accordingly, the current Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 10,47,96,000/- (Ru-
pees Ten Crore Forty-Seven Lakhs Ninety-Six Thousand Only) divided into 1,04,79,600 (One Crore Four Lakhs 
Seventy-Nine Thousand Six Hundred) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on January 11, 2024 had allotted 72,00,000 equity shares out of 
security premium account account/or free reserve of the company in the ratio of 16: 1 i.e. 16 (Sixteen) Bonus 
Equity Shares for every 1 (One) Equity Share. Pursuant to Bonus issue, the issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
capital of the Company was increased from Rs 45,00,000 (Rupees Forty-Five Lakhs Only) divided into 4,50,000 
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to 7,65,00,000 (Rupees Seven Crores Sixty-Five lakhs only) divided into 76,50,000 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

REPORT Page 21



The composition of Board complies with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Further, in pursuance 
of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), 
the Company is exempted from the requirement of having composition of Board as per Regulation 17 of Listing Regu-
lations. None of the Director of the Company is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any other Listed Company and 
the number of their directorship is within the limits laid down under section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 
Constitution of Board:

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

As on the date of this report, the Board comprises of the following Directors;  

Name of 
Director

Mr. Trishneet Arora 

1 excluding Section 8 Company, struck off Company, Amalgamated Company and LLPs
2 Committee includes Audit Committee, and Shareholders’ Grievances & Relationship Committee across 
 all Public Companies including our Company.

Mr. Charanjit Singh 

Mr. Bharatkumar 
Amrutlal Panchal 

Category Cum 
Designation 

Chairman, Executive
 Director and CEO 

Whole time Director 

Non - Executive Director 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Ms. Aarti Jeetendra 
Juneja 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Mr. Rajiv Vijay Nabar  Non-Executive Independent 
Director

January 08, 2024 2 - 

- 

- 

- 

- 

3 

2 

- 

56,60,830

3,05,830

- 

- 

- 

- 

1 

6 

4 

2 

3 

7 

2 

1 

- 

   January 08, 2024 

   September 30, 2023 

   January 13, 2024 

January 13, 2024 

January 13, 2024

Date of Appointment 
at current Term & 
designation 

Total Director 
Ships in 

other co.1

No. of Committee1
in which 
Director 

is

in which 
Director is

No. of Shares 
held as on 

March 31, 2024
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BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of the Company regularly meets to discuss various Business opportunities. Additional Board meetings 
were convened, as and when required to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other busi-
nesses. 

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 11 (Eleven) times are as on, May 15, 2023, 
August 18, 2023, September 04, 2023, November 26, 2023, December 01, 2023, January 01, 2024, January 06, 2024, 
January 11, 2024 (At 10:30 A.M.), January 11, 2024 (At 05:30 P.M.), January 12, 2024 and March 26, 2024. Pursuant to 
Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, the time gap between the two consecutive Board Meetings was not be more 



The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as provided in 
 section 173 of the Act. 

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings are given below:
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GENERAL MEETINGS: 

During the year under review, the following General Meetings were held, the details of which are given as under:

 Name of Director

Mr. Trishneet Arora

Mr. Charanjit Singh

Mr. Bharat Panchal

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup

Ms. Aarti Juneja

Mr. Rajiv Nabar

07567604

07567588

06660419

00132716

06872059

10383397

Chairman, Executive Director  

Whole-time director  

Non -executive Director  

Non -executive Independent Director  

Non -executive Independent Director  

Non -executive Independent Director 

11 

11 

09 

01 

01 

01 

11 

11 

09 

01 

01 

01 

DIN Designation
Number of Board 
Meetings Eligible 
to attend

Number of Board 
Meetings attended

Type of General MeetingSr. No. 

Annual General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 30, 2023 

December 01, 2023 

December 14, 2023 

January 08, 2024 

January 11, 2024 

January 13, 2024 

Date of General Meeting 
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DISCLOSURE BY DIRECTORS: 

The Directors on the Board have submitted notice of interest under Section 184(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. in 
Form MBP-1, intimation under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. in Form DIR-8 and declaration as to compli-
ance with the Code of Conduct of the Company. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, as on March 31, 2024 the Company has 
three Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors in line with the act. The Company has received necessary dec-
laration from each Independent Director under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of 
independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Act. Further, all the Independent Directors of the Company have regis-
tered themselves in the Independent Director Data Bank. 

The Independent Directors in their meeting will review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as 
whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow 
of information between Company management and Board. 
 
INFORMATION ON DIRECTORATE: 

During the year under review, following changes took place in the constitution of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 
CHANGE IN BOARD COMPOSITION:

Changes in Board Composition during the financial year 2023-24 and up to the date of this report is furnished below: 
  
a.  Appointment:

I. In the Board Meeting held on August 18, 2023: 

Mr. Bharatkumar Amrutlal Panchal (DIN: 06660419) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director on 
the Board of the company w.e.f. August 18, 2023.

II. In the Board Meeting held on January 12, 2024: 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup (DIN: 00132716) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on the 
Board of the company w.e.f.  January 12, 2024 to hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing General Meeting of 
the members of the company. 

Mr. Rajiv Vijay Nabar (DIN: 10383397) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on 
the Board of the company w.e.f. January 12, 2024 to hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing General Meet-
ing of the members of the company.  

Ms. Aarti Jeetendra Juneja (DIN: 06872059) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on 
the Board of the company w.e.f. January 12, 2024 to hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing General Meet-
ing of the members of the company.  

 
 
b.  Regularization: 

In the Annual General Meeting of the Members held on September 30, 2023, Mr. Bharatkumar Amrutlal Panchal 
(DIN: 06660419) who was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Director of the company on August 18, 2023 up 
to the date of the conclusion of the ensuing General Meeting was regularized and appointed as Non-Executive 
Director of the company w.e.f August 18, 2023 liable to retire by rotation. 

In the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 13, 2024, Mr. Sanjiv Swarup (DIN: 
00132716) who was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the company on January 12, 
2024 upto the date of the conclusion of the ensuing General Meeting was regularized and appointed as Indepen-
dent Director of the company w.e.f January 12, 2024, not liable to retire by rotation. 

In the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 13, 2024, Mr. Rajiv Nabar (DIN: 10383397) 
who was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the company on January 12, 2024 upto 
the date of the conclusion of the ensuing General Meeting was regularized and appointed as Independent Direc-
tor of the company w.e.f Janaury 12, 2024, not liable to retire by rotation. 



 
c.  Change in designation:

In the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 08, 2024, the designation of Mr. Trishneet
Arora (DIN: 07567604) was changed from Non-Executive Director to Chairman Executive Director and Chief Exec-
utive officer of the company for a period of five years w.e.f January 08, 2024, liable to retire by rotation. 
 
In the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 08, 2024, the designation of Mr. Charanjit
Singh (DIN: 07567588) was changed from Non- Executive Director to Whole Time Director of the company for a
period of five years w.e.f January 08, 2024, liable to retire by rotation.
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In the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 13, 2024, Ms. Aarti Jeetendra Juneja (DIN: 
06872059) who was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the company on January 12, 
2024 upto the date of the conclusion of the ensuing General Meeting was regularized and appointed as Indepen-
dent Director of the company w.e.f Janaury 12, 2024, not liable to retire by rotation. 

 
d.  Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment: 

Mr. Charanjit Singh (DIN: 07567588), Whole Time Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting, pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modi-
fication(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and being eligible have offered himself for 
re-appointment. 

Appropriate business for his re-appointment is being placed for the approval of the shareholders of the Compa-
ny at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the Director and other related information has been detailed in the 
Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company. 

The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard, of the person seeking re-appointment/ ap-
pointment as Director are also provided in Notes to the Notice convening the 8th Annual General meeting. 

i.

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company designated the following individuals as Key Managerial Personnel as per 
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:  

Mr. Trishneet Arora – Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer  
Mr. Charanjit Singh - Whole Time Director 
Ms. Neha Garg - Chief Financial Officer* 
Mr. Vishal Jain - Chief Financial Officer** 
Ms. Sharon Arora - Company Secretary and Compliance officer  
*Ms. Neha Garg resigned from the designation of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. May 24, 2024. 
**Mr. Vishal Jain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. May 24, 2024. 

During the year under review following changes took place in the constitution of Key Managerial Personnel: 

Mr. Trishneet Arora (DIN: 07567604) Non - Executive Director of the company was designated as Chairman, 
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the company w.e.f January 08, 2024. 
Mr. Charanjit Singh (DIN: 07567588) Non - Executive Director of the company was designated as Whole Time Director of 
the company w.e.f December 09, 2023. 
Ms. Neha Garg resigned from the designation of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) w.e.f. May 24, 2024. 
Mr. Vishal Jain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the company w.e.f from May 24, 2024. 
Ms. Sharon Arora (M. No.: A38209) was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the company w.e.f. Jan-
uary 01, 2024. 
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CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE: 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company designated the following individuals as Key Managerial Personnel as per 
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:  

As on the date of this report, the registered office of the company is situated at: 08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial 
Focal Point, Phase 8B, Mohali,  Punjab -160055, Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

The registered office was shifted for administrative convenience from 04th Floor, World Tech Tower, Plot No.C-203, 
Phase 8B, Industrial Area, Sector 74, Mohali-160059, Chandigarh, Punjab, to 08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali,  Punjab -160055, Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 

Your Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obli-
gations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in the following manners; 

Separate meeting of independent directors will be held to evaluate the performance of non-independent directors, per-
formance of the board as a whole and performance of the chairman, taking into account the views of executive directors 
and non-executive directors. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding 
the independent director being evaluated. 

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the directors, on the basis of 
the criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and function-
ing etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members 
on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on 
the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like 
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

In addition, the chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.  

 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:  

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that: 

In preparation of Annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and that no material departures have been made from the same; 

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year; 

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 on going concern basis. 

The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal Finan-
cial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD

Your Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act, has formed various committees, details of which are 
given hereunder. 

The registered office was shifted for administrative convenience from 04th Floor, World Tech Tower, Plot No.C-203, 
Phase 8B, Industrial Area, Sector 74, Mohali-160059, Chandigarh, Punjab, to 08th Floor, Plot No. C-203,  
Industrial Focal Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

 
a.  Audit Committee: 

Your Board of Directors have, in pursuance to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any subsequent 
modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof in its Meeting held on January 12, 2024 constituted Audit Committee. 

 
b.  Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee: 

Your Board of Directors have, in pursuance to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any subse-
quent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof in its Meeting held on January 12, 2024 constituted Stakeholders Rela-
tionship Committee. 

The Company has constituted Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee mainly to focus on the redressal of Sharehold-
ers’/ Investors’ Grievances, if any, like Transfer/Transmission/Demat of Shares; Loss of Share Certificates; Non-receipt 
of Annual Report; Dividend Warrants; etc.  

The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows: 

 

The constitution of the Audit Committee is as follows: 

Audit Committee meeting is generally held for the purpose of recommending the half yearly and yearly financial result. 
As the Committee was constituted on January 12, 2024 the meeting of committee was not applicable during the report-
ing period.  

 Name of Committee
 Member 

Ms. Aarti Juneja 

Mr. Rajiv Vijay Nabar 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup 

Mr. Bharat Panchal 

06872059 

10383397 

00132716 

06660419 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Chairperson 

Member 

Member 

Member 

DIN Designation Nature of Directorship

 Name of Committee
 Member 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup 

Ms. Aarti Juneja 

Mr. Rajiv Vijay Nabar 

00132716 

06872059 

10383397 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Chairperson 

Member 

Member 

DIN Designation Nature of Directorship
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As the Committee was constituted on January 12, 2024 the meeting of committee was not applicable during the report-
ing period. 

Also, during the year, the Company had not received any complaints from the Shareholders. There was no complaint 
pending as on March 31, 2024. 

 
 
c.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee:  

Your Board of Directors have, in pursuance to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any subsequent 
modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof in its Meeting held on January 12, 2024 constituted Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee, 

The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

 Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture. It enables the 
Company to attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize the aspirations of 
human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits,  

Perquisites and allowances to its Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Annual increments are decided by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary scale approved by the members and are effective from 
April 1, of each year. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the Compa-
ny at https://tacsecurity.com/investor-relations/.  

 
d. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 
 
Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Commit-
tee (“The CSR Committee”) with object to recommend the Board a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and amount 
to be spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility. The CSR Committee is responsible for indicating the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the 
amount to be spent on CSR activities. 

During the year under review, no meeting of the CSR Committee had been held.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings are generally held for identifying the persons who are qualified to 
become Directors and may be appointed in senior management and recommending their appointments and removal. 
As the Committee was constituted on January 12, 2024 the meeting of committee was not applicable during the report-
ing period.

 Name of Committee
 Member 

Mr. Rajiv Vijay Nabar 

Ms. Aarti Juneja 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup 

Mr. Bharat Panchal 

10383397 

06872059 

00132716 

06660419 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Chairperson 

Member 

Member 

Member 

DIN Designation Nature of Directorship
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The constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows: 

 
VIGIL MECHANISM:  
 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy enables the 
employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior actual or suspected fraud or violation of Com-
pany’s Code of Conduct.  

Further the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievanc-
es and provide for adequate safe guards against victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and 
also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.  

The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the Whistle blowers 
has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on 
the website of the Company at https://tacsecurity.com/investor-relations/. 
 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR:  
 
The details of remuneration paid during the financial year 2023-24 to directors of the Company is provided in Form 
MGT-7, which is available at website of the Company, i.e. https://tacsecurity.com/investor-relations/.  
 
PUBLIC DEPOSIT:
 
The company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Hence, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India & 
the Provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Company Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules 
there under are not applicable. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS & SECURITY: 
 
Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statement. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN: 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the draft annual return as on March 31, 2024 prepared in accordance with Sec-
tion 92(3) of the Act is made available on the website of your Company and can be accessed using the https://tacsecuri-
ty.com/investor-relations/. 

 Name of Committee
 Member 

Mr. Trishneet Arora 

Mr. Charanjit Singh 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup 

07567604 

07567588 

00132716 

Chairman, Executive Director & CEO 

Whole time Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Chairperson 

Member 

Member 

DIN Designation Nature of Directorship

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 



REPORT Page 30

 
SUBSIDIARIES ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE OF THE COMPANY: 
 
As on March 31, 2024, Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Company except TAC 
Security INC (Wholly Owned Subsidiary).

 
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
 
All the Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year were on an Arm’s Length basis and in the Ordi-
nary Course of Business. No material significant Related Party Transactions (i.e. exceeding 10% of the annual consolidat-
ed turnover as per the last audited financial statement) with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and 
other related parties which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large, were entered during 
the year by your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. 

Further, prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on yearly basis for the transactions which are of a 
foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted were placed 
before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for their approval on quarterly basis.  

The details of the related party transactions for the financial year 2023-24 is given in notes of the financial statements 
which is part of Annual Report. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors is avail-
able on the website of the Company at https://tacsecurity.com/investor-relations/.  

 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT: 
 
During the reporting year, on March 11, 2024, your Company had successfully acquired 100% stake in TAC Security INC, 
thereby rendering it as a wholly owned subsidiary of the company. Apart from the aforementioned transaction, there 
were no other material changes or commitments undertaken during the financial year.   

 
PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES:
 
The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median of employees’ remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as “Annexure-B.” 

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of the financial 
statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report as Annexure –A. 

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 129(3) of Com-
panies Act, 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries in accordance with the rele-
vant accounting standards have been prepared which forms part of the Annual Report. 

Further, the Company does not have any Associate Companies and Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2024. 

 Name of the Company Sr. No. 

1. TAC Security INC State of Delaware, 1013, 
Centre Road, Suite 403-B, City of 
Wilmington, County of New Castle
 – 19805-1270. 

The Company is engaged in 
providing services related to cyber 
space security. 

Address of Registered Office Nature of Business 
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SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:  
 
To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, your company have institutionalized 
the Anti-Sexual Harassment Initiative (ASHI) framework, through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at 
the all workplaces of the Company. Your Company’s  policy assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to com-
plainants. Your Company follow a gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual harassment and  compliant 
with the law of the land where we operate.  

Your Company has setup an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for redressal of Complaints. 

During the financial year 2023-24, your company is pleased to report that there were no complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment and remain committed to maintaining a safe and respectful workplace environment for all employ-
ees, where such issues are handled swiftly and with the utmost sensitivity and diligence. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT:   
 
A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential 
impact and risk mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of risks identi-
fied and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles of probability of occurrence and 
impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage both business and 
non-business risks. 
 
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated 
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to 
time is annexed to this Report as “Annexure - C.” 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2: 
 
The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Stan-
dards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operating effec-
tively. During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi. 

 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
 
Though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated completely, all efforts are made to minimize 
the impact of such risks on the operations of the Company. Necessary internal control systems are also put in place by 
the Company on various activities across the board to ensure that business operations are directed towards attaining 
the stated organizational objectives with optimum utilization of the resources. Apart from these internal control proce-
dures, a well-defined and established system of internal audit is in operation to independently review and strengthen 
these control measures, which is carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants. The audit is based on an inter-
nal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutory auditor of the Company and the audit com-
mittee. The conduct of internal audit is oriented towards the review of internal controls and risks in its operations. 

M/s. Maharishi & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 124872W), the statutory auditors of the Company have audited the 
financial statements included in this annual report and has issued a report annexed as an Annexure B to the Audit 
Report of the Company on our internal control over financial reporting as defined in section 143 of Companies Act, 2013. 

The audit committee reviews reports submitted by the management and audit reports submitted by internal auditors 
and statutory auditor. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
Integrity and transparency are key factors to our corporate governance practices to ensure that we achieve and will 
retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. Corporate governance is about maximizing shareholder value legally, eth-
ically and sustainably. Our Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of the term. Our disclosures 
seek to attain the best practices in international corporate governance. We also endeavor to enhance long-term share-
holder value and respect minority rights in all our business decisions. 

As our company has been listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange Limited, by virtue of Regulation 15 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the compliance with the corporate Gover-
nance provisions as specified in regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C 
D and E of Schedule V are not applicable to the company. Hence Corporate Governance Report does not form a part of 
this Board Report, though we are committed for the best corporate governance practices. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
 
The details of the CSR Committee is provided in this Annual Report. The CSR policy is available on the website of your 
Company at www.tacsecurity.com/investor-relations. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed and forms part of 
this report as Annexure D.  

The Company has spent  2% of the average net profits of the Company, during the three years immediately preceding 
financial year. The details of the same is forming part of this Report.  

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
 
In terms of Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 a 
review of the performance of the Company for the year under review Management Discussion and Analysis Report is 
presented in a separate section which is annexed to this Report as Annexure-E. 
 
STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT:
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, M/s. Maharishi 
& Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 124872W), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of company held on September 30, 2022 to hold office till conclusion of the 6th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2027.

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for 
any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial state-
ments in this Annual Report. There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Au-
ditors in their Report.   
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR: 
 
Pursuant to Section 138 of Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, company does not fall 
under criteria as specified under Section 138 of Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as 
Internal Audit is not applicable for the F.Y. 2023-24, and accordingly Company has not appointed Internal Auditor for F.Y. 
2023-24. 

 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD: 
 
The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government as per Section 148(1) of 
the Act and the rules framed thereunder and accordingly. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Mana-
gerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, company does not fall under criteria as specified under Section 204 of the Act read with 
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 Secretarial Audit is not applica-
ble for the F.Y. 2023-24, and accordingly Company has not appointed Secretarial Auditor for F.Y. 2023-24. 

 
REPORTING OF FRAUD: 
 
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor of your Company have not reported any 
instances of fraud committed in your Company by Company’s officers or employees, to the Audit Committee, as 
required under Section 143(12) of the Act. 
 
SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/INTERNAL AUDITOR: 
 
There are no other significant/material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts, Tribunals, Statutory and quasi-judicial 
body impacting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future. 

The details of litigation on tax and other relevant matters are disclosed in the Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements 
which forms part of this Annual Report. 

 
PROCEEDINGS INITIATED/PENDING AGAINST YOUR COMPANY UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 
 
During the period under review no corporate insolvency resolution process is initiated against the company under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC).  

 
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 
 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securi-
ties by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Com-
pany's shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees 
while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when 
the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. 

 
WEBSITE: 
 
Your Company has its fully functional website https://tacsecurity.com which has been designed to exhibit all the relevant 
details about the Company. The site carries a comprehensive database of information of the Company including the 
Financial Results of your Company, Shareholding Pattern, details of Board Committees, Corporate Policies/ Codes, busi-
ness activities and current affairs of your Company. All the mandatory information and disclosures as per the require-
ments of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies Rules, 2014 and as per Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclo-
sure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and also the non-mandatory information of Investors’ interest / knowledge has 
been duly presented on the website of the Company. 

 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 
 
During the year under review, industrial relations remained harmonious at all our offices and establishments. 

 
GENERAL DISCLOSURE: 
 
Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in section 134 (3) of 
the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the act and listing regula-
tions, to the extent the transactions took place on those items during the year. Your Directors further state that no dis-
closure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these items during the 
year under review; 
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(i) Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; 

(ii) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and ESOS; 

(iii) There is no revision in the Board Report or Financial Statement; 

(iv) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
     concern status and Company’s operations in future; 

 
APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
Your directors’ wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contributions made by the employees at 
all levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment during the year under review. 

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your Company has been receiving from its 
suppliers, distributors, retailers, business partners and others associated with it as its trading partners. Your Company 
looks upon them as partners in its progress and has shared with them the rewards of growth. It will be your Company’s 
endeavor to build and nurture strong links with the trade based on mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operation 
with each other, consistent with consumer interests. 

Your directors also take this opportunity to thank all Shareholders, Clients, Vendors, Banks, Government and Regulatory 
Authorities and Stock Exchanges, for their continued support. 

Registered office: 

08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab 
Date: September 07, 2024 

Trishneet Arora 
Chairman, Executive Director 
DIN: 07567604 

Charanjit Singh 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 07567588

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

TAC Infosec Limited

CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575  
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Annexure-A
 

FORM NO. AOC-1  
 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2O14) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies 
or Joint ventures 

Sr. 
No. Name Designation 

 (Amount in Rupees)

Name of the subsidiary 

The date since when subsidiary was acquired 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company’s reporting period 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

Share capital 

Reserves & surplus 

Total assets

Total Liabilities 

Investments 

Turnover 

Profit before taxation 

Provision for taxation 

Profit after taxation 

Proposed Dividend 

Extent of shareholding (%) 

 

 

TAC Security INC 

March 11, 2024 

January to December 

Rs. 83.3739 

5852.85 

2,11,221.10 

9,60,17,895.44 

9,58,00,821.42 

-- 

-- 

(12,867.74) 

-- 

(12,867.74) 

-- 

100% 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11

12

13.

14.

15.
 

 

Registered office: 

08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab 
Date: September 07, 2024 

Trishneet Arora 
Chairman, Executive Director 
DIN: 07567604  

Charanjit Singh 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 07567588 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

TAC Infosec Limited

CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575
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Annexure-B
 

Particulars of Employees 
(Pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rules made thereunder)

 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Com-

panies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under. 

Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014: 

The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the Financial Year and 
the Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Compa-
ny Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year: 

*During the financial year 2023-24, Company Secretary was appointed w.e.f. January 01, 2024, Salary paid was for 
3 months only . Hence, the ratio of remuneration of such employee to median remuneration of employees and 
increase / decrease in remuneration are not given. 

a.

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:  

There was a drastic change in the number of employees as well as remuneration paid to the employee in the cur-
rent Financial Year as compared to previous Financial Year. Therefore, the calculation of percentage of increase/-
decrease in  median remuneration of the employees is not possible. 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:   

Total 63 Permanent Employees were on roll in the company as on March 31, 2024. 

Average percentile increase/decreased already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase/decreased in the manage-
rial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration:

There was a drastic change in the number of employees as well as remuneration paid to the employee in the cur-
rent Financial Year as compared to previous Financial Year. Therefore, the calculation of percentage of increase/-
decrease in  average remuneration of the employees is not possible.  

b.

c.

d.

Sr. 
No. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Name 

Mr. Trishneet Arora 

Mr. Charanjit Singh 

Mr. Bharat Panchal 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup 

Mr. Rajiv Vijay Nabar 

Ms. Aarti Jeetendra Juneja 

Ms. Sharon Arora 

Chairman, Executive Director 

Whole time Director 

Non-Executive Director  

Non-Executive Independent Director  

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Company Secretary 

Remuneration 

Remuneration 

Remuneration 

Sitting Fees 

Sitting Fee 

Sitting Fee 

Salary* 

11.13:1 

2.37:1 

NA 

0.15:1 

0.15:1 

0.15:1 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

Designation Nature of 
Payment

Ratio Against 
Median Employee’s 
Remuneration

Percentage 
Increase 
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Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: 

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

e.

Registered office: 

08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab 
Date: September 07, 2024 

Trishneet Arora 
Chairman, Executive Director 
DIN: 07567604  

Charanjit Singh 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 07567588 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

TAC Infosec Limited

CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575
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Annexure-C
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 

[Pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014] 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:  

Your Company is firmly committed to reduce the consumption of power by introducing more energy efficient 
technology. The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, the Company endeavored to 
conserve energy consumption wherever feasible. Company ensures that the operations are conducted in the 
manner whereby optimum utilization and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. 

Steps taken by the Company to utilize alternate source of energy:  

Nil 

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:  

Nil 

A.

(i)

(ii)

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  

The efforts made towards technology absorption:    

No special efforts made towards technology absorption. However, your Company continues its commitment 
to up the quality by absorbing the latest technology.  

Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: 

Not Applicable  

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of finan-
cial year) – Not Applicable  

Expenditure incurred on Research & Development – Not Applicable 

B.

(i)

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  C.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iii)

Particulars 

Export Sales 

Import Purchases 

 

F.Y. 2023-24 

905.62 

- 

F.Y. 2022-23 

719.61 

- 

Registered office: 

08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab 
Date: September 07, 2024 

Trishneet Arora 
Chairman, Executive Director 
DIN: 07567604  

Charanjit Singh 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 07567588 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

TAC Infosec Limited

CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575
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Annexure-D
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 134 of the Act, Section 135 read with Companies  

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended] 

1. A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to 
   be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and Projects or programmes: 

Longevity and success for a company comes from living in harmony with the context, which is the community 
and society. CSR is essentially a way of conducting business responsibly and the company shall endeavor to con-
duct its business operations and activities in a socially responsible and sustainable manner at all times. The 
main objective of CSR Policy of the Company encompasses the ideas of corporate governance, sustainable 
wealth creation, corporate philanthropy and advocacy for the goals of the community. The projects undertaken 
will be within the broad framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Our CSR initiatives focus on CSR 
projects as provided under Schedule VII. The Company has framed its CSR Policy in compliance with the provi-
sions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed on the Company’s website and may be accessed at 
https://tacsecurity.com/investor-relations/.  

 

3. Web Link of the Website of the Company for Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR 
   Projects Approved By the Board: 

The details are available at https://tacsecurity.com/investor-relations/ 

Details of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects Carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Compa-
nies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, If Applicable.  
Not Applicable for the financial year under review. 

Details of the Amount Available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corpo-
rate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 And Amount Required for set-off for the financial year, if any- 
NIL 

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: 236.82 Lakhs  

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 6 above):  

- Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 4.73 Lakhs 
- Surplus arising out of CSR projects/ programmes/ activities of the previous financial years: NIL 
- Amount required to be set off for the financial year: NIL 
- Amount unspent, if any: NIL 
- Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): 4.73 Lakhs 

2. The Composition of CSR Committee as at March 31, 2024: 

 Name of Committee
 Member 

 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 

Mr. Trishneet Arora 

Mr. Charanjit Singh 

Mr. Sanjiv Swarup 

07567604 

07567588 

00132716 

Chairman, Executive Director & CEO 

Whole time Director 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Chairperson 

Member 

Member 

DIN Designation Nature of Directorship

4.

5.

6.

7.
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8. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
    a. Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year :  
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b. Amount Unspent: 
    - Details of CSR amount Unspent against ongoing projects/ other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Amount spent in administrative overheads: NIL 
Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable: Not applicable 
Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 4,73,649 
Details of excess amount for set-off are: Nil 

(a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
     year(s): NIL 

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or ac-
quired through CSR spent in the financial year:

No capital asset was created / acquired for FY 2023-24 through CSR spend.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per Section 
135(5): The Company has not spent two percent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable   

9.
10.
11.
12.

13.

14.

Registered office: 

08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab 
Date: September 07, 2024 

Trishneet Arora 
Chairman, Executive Director 
DIN: 07567604  

Charanjit Singh 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 07567588 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

TAC Infosec Limited

CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575
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Annexure-E
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The discussion hereunder covers Company’s performance and its business outlook for the future. This outlook 
is based on assessment of the current business environment and Government policies. The change in future 
economic and other developments are likely to cause variation in this outlook.

The Management’s views on the Company’s Performance and outlook are discussed below:  

 
ECONOMIC REVIEW:
 
Global Economy: 
Global economic growth is anticipated to reach 3.1 percent in 2024 and 3.2 percent in 2025. The forecast for 2024 ex-
ceeds the October 2023 World Economic Outlook (WEO) by 0.2 percentage points due to stronger-than-anticipated resil-
ience observed in the United States and several prominent emerging market and developing economies, alongside fiscal 
measures implemented in China. Nevertheless, the projected growth rates for 2024-2025 fall short of the 3.8 percent his-
torical average recorded during 2000-2019. This divergence is attributed to heightened central bank policy rates aimed 
at combating inflation, reduction in fiscal support amidst elevated debt levels that impose constraints on economic activi-
ty, and sluggish underlying productivity gains. Notably, inflation rates are declining more swiftly than earlier projections 
across most regions, driven by the resolution of supply-side disruptions and the implementation of restrictive monetary 
policies. Global headline inflation is expected to decrease to 5.8 percent in 2024 and further to 4.4 percent in 2025, with 
downward revisions made to the 2025 forecast. 

 
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS: 
 
India's IT & BPM sector is a key driver of economic growth, contributing significantly to GDP and societal well-being. With 
a current GDP contribution of 7.4% (FY22) and a projected 10% contribution by 2025, the sector is poised for further ex-
pansion. Leveraging its large internet user base and affordable internet rates, India is well-positioned for the next phase 
of its IT revolution. The government's Digital India Programme has established a robust digital infrastructure, enabling 
rapid digital adoption and empowering citizens. This has resulted in improved economic value creation and enhanced 
citizen experiences. India's innovation ecosystem has also seen significant growth, with a six-place jump to 40th position 
in the 2022 Global Innovation Index. Key success factors include government initiatives, private sector innovation and 
investment, and the proliferation of digital applications across various industries and workflows, ultimately driving posi-
tive change in citizens' daily lives. 

Indian Economy Outlook:  
India has maintained a strong economic performance despite global challenges and geopolitical concerns. This resilience 
can be attributed to robust domestic demand, a pickup in rural demand, strong investment levels, and sustained mo-
mentum in manufacturing. Despite global challenges, India stands out for its robust economic growth, demonstrating 
broad-based expansion across various sectors and reaffirming its pivotal role in supporting global economic growth. 

The combined efforts of the government and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to tackle inflation through strategic policy 
rate adjustments, bolstering food reserves, and facilitating easier imports have successfully managed inflationary pres-
sures. As a result, retail inflation in the fiscal year 2023-24 saw a notable decrease, reaching its lowest point since the 
onset of the Covid-19 pandemic. Core inflation specifically declined to 3.3% by March 2024. Moreover, the forecast of an 
above-normal monsoon in 2024 augurs well for agricultural productivity, which is expected to further alleviate concerns 
regarding inflation. 

The backdrop of slowing global trade poses challenges for economies globally. However, India is poised to reduce its 
trade deficit in the upcoming years, supported by the expanded coverage of the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) 
scheme across multiple sectors. Strong export performance and robust remittance inflows are anticipated to contribute 
significantly. International agencies and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) forecast that the Current Account Deficit (CAD) as 
a percentage of GDP will likely have moderated to below 1% in the fiscal year 2023-24. 

India remains the fastest-growing major economy, with international organizations and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 
providing positive assessments of its growth outlook for the current financial year.  
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According to National Association of Software and Service Companies (Nasscom), the Indian IT industry’s revenue 
touched US$ 227 billion in FY22, a 15.5% YoY growth and was estimated to have touched US$ 245 billion in FY23.  

In 2022, the Indian domestic IT & Business Services market was valued at US$ 13.87 billion and recorded a 7.4% 
yearover-year (YoY) growth as compared to 7.2% in 2021. IT spending in India is expected to increase to US$ 110.3 bil-
lion in 2023 from an estimated US$ 81.89 billion in 2021. Indian software product industry is expected to reach US$ 
100 billion by 2025. Indian companies are focusing on investing internationally to expand their global footprint and 
enhance their global delivery centres. 

The data annotation market in India stood at US$ 250 million in FY20, of which the US market contributed 60% to the 
overall value. The market is expected to reach US$ 7 billion by 2030 due to accelerated domestic demand for AI. 

 India's IT industry is likely to hit the US$ 350 billion mark by 2026 and contribute 10% towards the country's gross do-
mestic product (GDP), Infomerics Ratings said in a report. 

 As an estimate, India’s IT export revenue rose by 9% in constant currency terms to US$ 194 billion in FY23. Export of 
IT services has been the major contributor, accounting for more than 53% of total IT exports (including hardware). 
BPM and engineering and R&D (ER&D) and software products exports accounted for 22% and 25%, respectively of 
total IT exports during FY23.  

Exports from the Indian IT industry stood at US$ 178 billion in FY22. Export of IT services was the major contributor, 
accounting for more than 51% of total IT export (including hardware). BPM and engineering and R&D (ER&D) and soft-
ware products export accounted for 20.78% each to total IT exports during FY21. The ER&D market was expected to 
grow to US$ 42 billion by 2022. The IT industry added 2.9 lakh new jobs taking the industry’s workforce tally to 5.4 mil-
lion people in FY23. 
 
Government Initiatives: 
 
The IT & BPM sector is a significant growth driver for the Indian economy, contributing substantially to GDP and public 
welfare. With a projected GDP contribution of 10% by 2025, the sector is poised for further expansion. India's large 
internet user base, affordable internet rates, and solid digital infrastructure have created a fertile ground for digital 
adoption and innovation. 

The government's Digital India Programme has been instrumental in driving digital growth, with initiatives like data 
localization, cybersecurity, hyper-scale computing, AI, and blockchain. The IT industry has attracted significant invest-
ments, with Japanese investments growing 4X between 2016-20. 

The sector has seen substantial growth, with top Indian IT companies like TCS, Wipro, and Infosys offering numerous 
job opportunities. The IT spending in India is estimated to record a double-digit growth of 11.1% in 2024, totaling 
$138.6 billion. 
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Indian IT firms have a significant global footprint, with delivery centers worldwide and strategic alliances with internation-
al players. The sector is well-diversified across verticals like BFSI, telecom, and retail. 

The government has provided policy support, with an allocation of Rs. 97,579.05 crore (US$ 11.8 billion) for the IT and 
telecom sector in the Union Budget 2023-24. India's Digital Competitiveness Score of 60 reflects the rise of tech talent in 
the country. 

The IT industry is expected to hit the US$ 350 billion mark by 2026, with exports from the Indian IT services industry 
standing at US$ 199 billion in FY24. The sector has added 2.9 lakh new jobs, taking the industry's workforce tally to 5.4 
million people in FY23. 

Overall, India's IT & BPM sector is poised for continued growth, driven by innovation, digital adoption, and government 
support. 

 
OUR BUSINESS:  
 
Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘TAC Infosec Private Limited’ as a Private Limited Company, under the provi-
sions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated August 01, 2016, issued by the Registrar of Com-
panies, Central Registration Centre. Subsequently, theCompany was converted from a private limited company to public 
limited company and consequently, the name of the Company changed to “TAC Infosec Limited”. 

Our company is benefited from the extensive experience of our Promoters, Mr. Trishneet Arora and Mr. Charanjit Singh 
who is associated with our company since its incorporation and having combined experience of more than 10 (Ten) 
years in the Cybersecurity and vulnerability management. Our Board of Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel 
including Senior Management Personnel (SMP) and Advisory to the Board has also provided significant contribution in 
the growth of our company. 

Our company is engaged in the business of providing risk-based vulnerability management and assessment solutions, 
cybersecurity quantification and services of Penetration testing to organizations of any scale, size, and business through 
“SaaS model”. Our company offers security software products and solutions both in India and internationally. Our end 
customers are Banks and financial Institutions, government regulatory bodies and departments, large-scale enterprises 
(including business offices) like HDFC, Bandhan Bank, BSE, National Payments Corporation of India, DSP investment Man-
agers Private Limited, Motilal Oswal Financial Services Limited and NSDL e-Governance. Our flagship software product is 
ESOF (Enterprise Security in One Framework) which was launched in 2018. ESOF is a vulnerability management platform 
consisting of various product portfolio namely ESOF Appsec, ESOF VMP, ESOF VACA, ESOF PCI ASV, ESOF CRQ. All the 
products launched under ESOF Platform have wide range of applications ranging from vulnerability management solu-
tions for web and application-based data, compliance assessment, and cyber risk quantification. 
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Vulnerability Management is the continuous process of identifying, assessing, prioritizing, mitigating, and remediating 
the vulnerabilities across the complete Information Technology infrastructure of the organization. Cybersecurity of the 
organizations needs to be monitored in real-time and remediated as soon as possible to avoid attacks, this activity is 
often overseen by organizations through vulnerability management tools or products. While, Risk-Based Vulnerability 
Management (RBVM) is the process of prioritizing vulnerabilities for remediation based on the level of risk each vulnera-
bility discovered, poses to your organization and IT Infrastructure. The RBVM method allows the organization to priori-
tize their vulnerabilities discovered on the basis of the severity, making it time and cost-effective while having a concrete 
cybersecurity process in place. ESOF offers a robust vulnerability assessment mechanism that scans and identifies poten-
tial security loopholes within the IT infrastructure and along with configuration assessment, it ensures that IT systems 
are not only free from vulnerabilities but also configured optimally to resist potential threats. Also, ESOF’s auto-prioritiza-
tion feature utilizes advanced algorithms to rank vulnerabilities based on their severity, potential impact, and exploitabili-
ty, ensuring that critical issues are addressed promptly.

Apart from above, ESOF also provides Asset Tiering, Business Unit Regrouping and Cyber score services. These services, 
coupled with risk quantification, provide senior management and board members with a well-informed and strategically 
planned approach to navigating the challenges and opportunities within their organizations. ESOF platform is more than 
just a vulnerability management tool as it provides comprehensive framework that empowers organizations to navigate 
the complex cybersecurity landscape. 

We have been successful in augmenting our portfolio of solutions over time through continuous Product Development 
which we believe is a key differentiator of our business model. Over the past five years, we have introduced a range of 
solutions focused on risk-based vulnerability management, risk quantification, and compliance assessment. Our commit-
ment to innovation is evident as we consistently invest in both enhancing our existing solutions and developing new 
ones.

 
SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 
 



 
ESOF (Enterprise Security in One Framework)
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ESOF CRQ: ESOF CRQ (Cyber Risk Quantification) provides financial risk assessment by way of quantification of cyber 
risk through Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning in order to identify potential threats before it can be materi-
alised and management can take informed decision. 

Other Services: We also provide services of Penetration Testing, commonly known as pen testing, is a form of ethical 
hacking aimed at discovering and remedying security vulnerabilities in networks, systems, and applications. Our 
company is a CREST (Council for Registered Ethical Security Testers) certified company offering assurance to clients 
regarding the security of their data. The company’s services align with regulatory requirements such as GDPR and 
ISO 2700. 

 
Opportunities:
 

Our company launched ESOF Platform on SaaS (Software as a Services) Model in 2018 under the guidance and leader-
ship of our Promoters and Directors. Under the umbrella of ESOF our company has launched total of 5 (Five) Product by 
the name of ESOF Appsec, ESOF VMP, ESOF VACA, ESOF PCI ASV, ESOF CRQ. Overview of each product is mentioned 
below:

ESOF Appsec: ESOF Appsec is a Unified Vulnerability Management Solution to Detect & Protect your Web and App 
Assets from risk-based vulnerabilities along with other features such as Scheduled scans, Vulnerability timeline, 
Cyber risk score, Historic trend data and Prioritising vulnerabilities 

ESOF VMP: ESOF VMP provides vulnerability management platform. Vulnerability management is a crucial aspect of 
cybersecurity and ESOF VMP provides risk-based vulnerability management services by y identifying, prioritizing, 
safely exploiting and helping to remediate vulnerabilities before it can be a material threat to the organization. 

ESOF VACA: ESOF VACA (Vulnerability Assessment Configuration Assessment) provides Identify, Evaluate, Prioritize, 
and Mitigate all the dominant vulnerabilities and risks in real-time across the entire IT landscape via an allin-one plat-
form providing various benefits Single Platform with Cloud Agent, Effortless Deployment and Boost Productivity. 

ESOF PCI ASV: ESOF PCI ASV is a comprehensive and integrated solution to ensure compliance with PCI (Payment 
Card Industry) requirements. PCI Compliance is adherence to the set of policies and procedures developed to pro-
tect details and transactions of cardholders. It provides comprehensive reporting, automatic scheduled scan, enter-
prise vide compliance dashboard and scheduled scan.

Exploring new Geographicals
Opportunities of other value-added services
Leveraging new AI and Machine Learning Technology.
Good relations with eatablished customers domestically and internationally
Experienced Team
Estabished Brand in Niche Market

 
Threats, Risks and Concern:
 

Change in Government Policy
Competition from organised and unorganised players
Change in technology
Incomplete Coverage
Regulatory Compliance Challenges
Resource Constraints
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:  

The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of business in India. The 
Company has clearly laid down policies, guidelines and procedures that form a part of the internal control systems. The 
adequacy of Internal Control Systems, which encompasses the Company’s business processes and financial reporting 
systems, is examined by the management at regular intervals. 

The Company has maintained internal control system in order to identify weaknesses and suggest improvements for 
better functioning. The observations derived are regularly noted by the management and relevant steps are taken to mit-
igate the same in order to ensure effective functioning within the Company.  

OUTLOOK:  

The security software industry is characterised by continuous advancement in technology. To maintain and advance our 
position in the market, we intend to continue to strengthen our Product Development capabilities, which shall enable us 
to innovate and develop solutions with the latest technology for existing and upcoming platforms. In addition to contin-
ued R&D and technology investments in development of new solutions, we may pursue acquisitions of, or investments 
in, or licensing of, technologies that complement our portfolio. In our continuing effort to strengthen our Product Devel-
opment abilities, we propose to utilise ₹ 1800.00 Lakhs of the Net Proceeds towards funding of our inorganic and organ-
ic growth through investment in Human resources and Product Development. Your company is providing risk-based vul-
nerability management solutions, cybersecurity quantification and services of Penetration testing to organizations of any 
scale, size, and business through its SaaS model. AI and ML algorithms can analyze vast amounts of data to identify pat-
terns and anomalies indicative of potential security threats. Automated threat detection enables the rapid identification 
of vulnerabilities, ensuring a timely response to potential risks providing Real time monitoring, prioritizing of risks and 
vulnerabilities, Reduced False positive and Predictive Analysis for potential material vulnerabilities and threats. 

Your company has a proven track record of successful operations in India as well as Outside India. At present we provide 
solutions to our clients under ESOF solutions having various sub-solutions encompassing on vulnerability management, 
cyber risk quantification and continuous assessment of client’s system in accordance with the need of our clients. At 
present, we have 5 (Five) products under ESOF and further we are planning to continuously add new products through 
R&D. We are soon launching ESOF Ensure which deals with Risk Rating & Cyber Insurance Solutions. 

Your Company is customer oriented and always strives to maintain good relationship with the customers. Our Compa-
ny’s marketing team approaches existing customers for their feedback and based on their feedback any changes in the 
products if required are carried out. Our Company provides quality products and effective follow-ups with customers 
who ensure that the customers are satisfied with the product and do not have any complain.  

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:   

The key strategy will be focused around: 

1. Financial strength & liquidity  
2. Professional Management  
3. Timely completion of Orders  
4. Customer care  
5. Brand Equity 
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Financial Performance and Review of Operations:  

The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of business in India. The 
Company has clearly laid down policies, guidelines and procedures that form a part of the internal control systems. The 
adequacy of Internal Control Systems, which encompasses the Company’s business processes and financial reporting 
systems, is examined by the management at regular intervals. 

The Company has maintained internal control system in order to identify weaknesses and suggest improvements for 
better functioning. The observations derived are regularly noted by the management and relevant steps are taken to mit-
igate the same in order to ensure effective functioning within the Company.  

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY 
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS THERE-
FORE:



REPORT Page 49

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT  

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard (“AS”) notified 
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of business in India. The 
Company has clearly laid down policies, guidelines and procedures that form a part of the internal control systems. The 
adequacy of Internal Control Systems, which encompasses the Company’s business processes and financial reporting 
systems, is examined by the management at regular intervals. 

The Company has maintained internal control system in order to identify weaknesses and suggest improvements for 
better functioning. The observations derived are regularly noted by the management and relevant steps are taken to mit-
igate the same in order to ensure effective functioning within the Company.  
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

The Company’s relations with the employees continued to be cordial and harmonious with its employees. It considers 
manpower as its assets and that people had been driving force for growth and expansion of the Company. The Compa-
ny acknowledge that its principal assets is it employees. The Company has continued its efforts in building a diverse and 
inclusive workforce.

As on March 31, 2024 the Company has 63 employees on its roll. The Company will continue to create opportunity and 
ensure recruitment of diverse candidates without compromising on meritocracy.

CAUTIONARY NOTE:

Statements in this Report, describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute 
'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Forward looking statements are 
based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. These statements are subject to certain risks and un-
certainties. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. 
The actual results may be different from those expressed or implied since the Company's operations are affected by 
many external and internal factors, which are beyond the control of the management. Hence the Company assumes no 
responsibility in respect of forward-looking statements that may be amended or modified in future on the basis of subse-
quent developments, information or events.

Registered office: 

08th Floor, Plot No. C-203, Industrial Focal 
Point, Phase 8B, Mohali, Punjab -160055, 
Punjab, India Ph. +91 99888 50821

Place:  Punjab 
Date: September 07, 2024 

Trishneet Arora 
Chairman, Executive Director 
DIN: 07567604  

Charanjit Singh 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 07567588 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

TAC Infosec Limited
CIN: L72900PB2016PLC045575



To the Members of
TAC INFOSEC LIMITED 

On the Consolidated Accounting 
Standards (AS ) Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated AS financial statement of TAC INFOSEC LIMITED 

(‘the Holding Company’) and its Subsidiary (collectively referred to as ‘the Company’ or ‘the Group’) 

(refer no. 1 to the attached consolidated financial statement) comprising of: 

a) the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024,

b) the consolidated statement of profit and loss  

c) the consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of change in equity for the year 

ended, and 

d) notes to the consolidated AS financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based 

on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements and other financial infor-

mation of the subsidiary the consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in 

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards pre-

scribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended (‘AS’), accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidates state of affairs of the 

Company, as at March 31, 2024, consolidated profit, their consolidated cash flow and consolidated change 

in equity for the year ended on that date.  



Basis of Opinion Key Audit Matters 
We conducted our audit of the con-
solidated financial statements in 
accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our respon-
sibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibility for the Audit of the 
consolidated financial statements 
section of our report. We are inde-
pendent of the Company in accor-
dance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together 
with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the con-
solidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to pro-
vide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the consolidated financial state-
ments. 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were 
of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit ad-
dressed the matter is provided in that context.
 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities de-
scribed in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated finan-
cial statements’ section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to 
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consol-
idated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our 
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters Sr. 
No

How our audit addressed the key 
audit matter 

We have obtained documentation for
acquisition of TAC Security INC.

We have also verified the same along
with reporting requirements of FEMA

We have also verified the accounting
treatment of the same in standalone
Financial Statement 

Evaluation of consolidation 
process
 

1. We performed the following key audit 
procedures:  

The consolidation process 
includes evaluation of the sig-
nificant influence, alignment 
of subsidiaries accounting poli-
cies with that of parent, and 
resultant adjustments which 
may require a high level of 
judgment. 

Acquisition of TAC Security Inc
 

2.
Company have acquired US 
based company TAC Security 
INC on March 11, 2024 

We have performed following proce-
dure in relation to the given matter 

Assessed the design, implementation 
and operating effectiveness of key 
controls in respect of Group’s process 
of consolidation and management’s 
procedures for alignment of group 
accounting policies, consolidation ad-
justments, and the resultant tax 
impact; 
Read the underlying documents relat-
ing to significant group entities, includ-
ing agreements to review the manage-
ment’s evaluation of significant influ-
ence; 
Tested the relevant general IT and ap-
plications controls over the consolida-
tion process to confirm the appropri-
ateness of the alignment of Associate 
accounting policies with that of 
parent; and 

Evaluated whether the methodology 
applied by management for align-
ment of accounting policies is appro-
priate by reading the accounting poli-
cies of the significant group entities 
and matching it with the Group’s ac-
counting policies.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an audi-
tor’s report that includes our opin-
ion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guar-
antee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could rea-
sonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consoli-
dated Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance 
with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain profession-
al skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also: 

Information Other than the 
Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Parent’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the other informa-
tion. The other information com-
prises the information included in 
the Board’s Report including Annex-
ures to Board’s Report, Manage-
ment Discussion and Analysis 
Report and Business Responsibility 
Report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements does not 
cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of as-
surance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the 
other information, compare with 
the financial statements of the sub-
sidiaries and joint ventures audit-
ed by the other auditors, to the 
extent it relates to these entities 
and, in doing so, place reliance on 
the work of the other auditors and 
consider whether the other infor-
mation is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge ob-
tained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. Other infor-
mation so far as it relates to the 
subsidiaries is traced from their 
financial statements audited by 
the other auditors.
 
If, based on the work we have per-
formed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have noth-
ing to report in this regard. 

 

Management’s responsibility 
for the consolidated financial 
statements
The Holding Company’s Board of 
Directors is responsible for the mat-
ters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation 
of these consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial per-
formance and consolidated cash 
flows of the Group including its as-
sociates and joint ventures in accor-
dance with the AS and other ac-
counting principles generally ac-
cepted in India. The respective 
Board of Directors of the compa-
nies included in the Group and its 
subsidiaries are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate account-
ing records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguard-
ing the assets of the Group and its 
subsidiaries for preventing and de-
tecting frauds and other irregulari-
ties; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operat-
ing effectively for ensuring the accu-
racy and completeness of the ac-
counting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of prepa-
ration of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the 
Parent, as aforesaid.
  
In preparing the consolidated finan-
cial statements, the respective 
Board of Directors of the compa-
nies included in the Group and of 
its associates are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Group 
and of its associates to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as appli-
cable, matters related to going con-
cern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the man-
agement either intends to liquidate 
or cease operations, or has no real-
istic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the 
Group and its subsidiaries are also 
responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the 
Group and of its associates. 

Identify and assess the risks of ma-
terial misstatement of the consoli-
dated financial statements, wheth-
er due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstate-
ment resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from an 
error, as fraud may involve collu-
sion, forgery, intentional omis-
sions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
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Other Matters 

Our opinion on the consolidat-
ed financial statement and our 
report on other legal and Regula-
tory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above 
matters with respect to our reli-
ance on the work done and 
reports of the other auditor and 
the financial statement/financial 
information certified by the 
management. 

We did not audit the Foreign 
Subsidiary company’s books of 
account whose financial state-
ments reflect total assets of Rs 
960 Lacs, total liabilities of Rs 
953 Lacs and did not have any 
revenue from operation during 
the consolidation period.
 
Foreign Subsidiary company 
Financials statements were pre-
pared in foreign currency over 
there of which were converted 
into Reporting currency (Indian 
Rs) and the same where certi-
fied by the management which 
were used for purpose of Con-
solidation. 

Obtain an understanding of inter-
nal financial controls relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial con-
trols system in place and the oper-
ating effectiveness of such con-
trols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting esti-
mates and related disclosures 
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness 
of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence ob-
tained, whether a material uncer-
tainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertain-
ty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the con-
solidated financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclu-
sions are based on the audit evi-
dence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the con-
solidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underly-
ing transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presenta-
tion. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the busi-
ness activities within the Group 
and its associates and joint ven-
tures to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial state-
ments. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of the 
financial statements of such busi-
ness activities included in the 
consolidated financial state-
ments of which we are the inde-
pendent auditors. For the busi-
ness activities included in the 
consolidated financial state-
ments, which have been audited 
by the other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for 
the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audits car-
ried out by them. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.  

From the matters communicated 
with those charged with gover-
nance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in 
the audit of the consolidated finan-
cial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circum-
stances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicat-
ed in our report because the ad-
verse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest bene-
fits of such communication. 

We communicate with those 
charged with governance regard-
ing, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficien-
cies in internal control that we iden-
tify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that 
we have complied with relevant eth-
ical requirements regarding inde-
pendence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our indepen-
dence, and where applicable, relat-
ed safeguards.

1.

2.

3.
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In our opinion proper books of 
account as required by law relat-
ing to preparation of the afore-
said consolidation of the finan-
cial statements have been kept 
by the Company so far as ap-
pears from our examination. 

The Consolidated Balance 
Sheet, the Consolidated State-
ment of Profit and Loss and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow State-
ment dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the 
books of account for the pur-
pose of preparation of the con-
solidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the aforesaid 
consolidated AS Financial State-
ment comply with the Account-
ing Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of written represen-
tations received from the direc-
tors as on March 31, 2024 taken 
on record by the Board of Direc-
tors, none of the directors is dis-
qualified as on March 31, 2024, 
from being appointed as a direc-
tor in terms of Section 164(2) of 
the Act. 

With respect to the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with ref-
erence to these consolidated 
financial statements of the com-
pany and the operating effective-
ness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Annex-
ure A”, and

a.

Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements
As required by section 143 (3) of 
the Act, based on our audit and on 
the consideration of report of the 
other auditors on separate finan-
cial statements and the other finan-
cial information of subsidiary and 
associate, as noted in the ‘other 
matter’ paragraph we report, to the 
extent applicable, that: 

b.

c.

d.

e.

With respect to the other mat-
ters to be included in the Audi-
tor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to 
the information and explana-
tions given to us, the managerial 
remuneration paid by the Com-
pany to its directors during the 
current year is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 
197 of the Act, read with Sched-
ule V of the Act. The remunera-
tion paid to any director is ac-
cording to the special resolution 
passed in meeting dated Octo-
ber 24, 2023. The Ministry of Cor-
porate Affairs has not prescribed 
other details under Section 
197(16) which are required to be 
commented upon by us 

With respect to the other mat-
ters to be included in the Audi-
tor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the 
explanation given to us; 

(i) There are no long-term con-
tracts including derivative con-
tracts, hence the question of 
reporting any material foresee-
able losses does not arise; 

(ii) There has been no delay in 
transferring amounts, required 
to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund 
by the holding company.  

f. The reporting under Rule 11(g) 
of the Companies (Audit and Au-
ditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1st April 2024.

(i) For the financial year 2023-24, 
based on our examination which 
included test checks and informa-
tion given to us, the Company 
has used accounting software 
Tally for maintaining its books of 
account, which did not have a 
feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the respective soft-
ware, and hence audit trail is not 
enabled throughout the period.  

For Maharishi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Reg. No.124872W 

 
Kapil Sanghvi 
Partner 
Membership No: 141168 
UDIN: 24141168BKAGAZ4463 
Date : May 24, 2024 
Place : Jamnagar 

h.

g.
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i)

of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) In Conjunction 

with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of TAC Infosec Limited as of and for 

the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the

internal financial controls over financial reporting of the group, which are

companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT 



Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, are 

responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls 

over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI”). These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 

of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 

its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, and accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India, 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards 

on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other 

auditors in terms of their report referred to in other matter paragraph below, is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial 
Control over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial 
ReportingA company’s internal financial con-

trol over financial reporting is a pro-
cess designed to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reli-
ability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements 
for external purpose in  accordance 
with generally accepted accounting 
principles.

A company’s internal financial con-
trol over financial reporting 
includes those policies and proce-
dures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance 
with authorization of the manage-
ment and directors 
of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely de-
tection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the compa-
ny’s assets that could have a materi-
al effect on the financial state-
ments. 

Because of the inherent limitations 
of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, 
material misstatement due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are sub-
ject to the 
risk that the internal financial con-
trol over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the 
degree 
of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

However, looking to the expansion 
of the group in terms of volume & 
capital expenditure either separate 
audit division or an appointment of 
external audit professional is sug-
gested. Our opinion is not modified 
for this matter. 

Opinion
In our opinion to the best of our 
information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the com-
pany and its subsidiary which are 
companies incorporated in India 
have, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial control 
system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting 

were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2024 based on the inter-
nal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Group 
considering the essential compo-
nents of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial  Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Sec-
tion 143(3)(i) of the Act on the ade-
quacy and operating effectiveness 
of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated 
financial statements insofar as it 
relates to three subsidiary compa-
ny, which are companies incorporat-
ed in India, is based 
on the corresponding reports of 
the auditors of such companies 
incorporated in India

For Maharishi & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi
Partner
M. NO. 141168
UDIN: 24141168BKAGAZ4463
Date : May 24, 2024
Place : Jamnagar 
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TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2024 

Sr. No.

A

Particulars

EQUITY:
Equity & Liabilities:
Share Holders Fund
 
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves & Surplus
(c) Money Received Against Share Warrants

3
4

5

6
7

765.00
647.62

1,412.62Sub-Total (A)

C Non Current Liabilities:

(a) Long Term Borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Long Term Provisions

5.06
   -
5.20

10.26Sub-Total (C)

D Current Liabilities:

(a) Short Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
     (I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
         enterprises
    (II) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
         and small enterprises
(c) Short Term Provisions
(d) Other Current Liabilities

162.67
     -
  10.26
 
    4.92
 
  72.73
  99.13

Sub-Total (D) 349.71

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES (A+B+C+D) 1,772.59

TOTAL ASSETS (E+F) 1,772.59

E ASSETS:
Non Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible assets
      I. Tangible Assets
     II. Intangible Assets
    III. Capital Work-in-progress
    iv. Intangible Asset Under Development
(b) Non Current Investment
(c) Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
(d) Other Non Current Asset

  71.13
      -
      -
107.05
      -
    2.22
187.14

Sub-Total (E) 367.54

F Current Assets

(a) Trade Receivables
(b) Cash and Bank Balances
(c) Other Current Assets
(d) Short Term Loans and Advances

 For Significant accounting policy and basis of accounting refer note 1 & 2 For an on behalf of Board of Directors of
TAC Infosec Limited

As per our report of even date
For, Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi 
Partner
Membership No. 141168
Signed at Jamnagar on May 24, 2024 Trishneet Arora

CEO & Director
DIN: 07567604
Place : Mohali

Charanjit Singh
Whole Time Director

DIN:07567588
Place : Mohali

Sharon Arora
Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
Place : Delhi

Vishal Jain
Chief Financial 

officer
Place : Pune

  1,141.62
       59.70
       89.74
     113.99

Sub-Total (F) 1,405.05

Sub-Total (B)

B Share Application Money Pending Allotment:
Liabilities:

Note No

(Amount in lakhs)

As at 
31.03.2024

UDIN : 24141168BKAGAZ4463
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Sr. No. Particulars

Income from Operations
Other Income 

8

1,161.79
      22.80
1,184.59 Total Income (I+II) 

IV Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Purchase of traded goods
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 
      and stock-intrade
(d) Employee benefits expense
(e) Finance Costs
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses
(g) Other expenses

     - 
     -
     -  

368.85 
  16.06
  24.97
139.70

V
VI
VII
VIII

IX
X

     Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items
     Exceptional items
     Profit/(Loss) Before tax (V-VI)
     Tax expenses
(a) Current Tax (incl. income tax of earlier years)
(b) Deferred tax

     Profit/(Loss) for the period
     Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share

635.01
     -
635.01
    1.97
    5.49
   -3.52

633.04
8.28

549.58Total Expenses

l
ll

lll

Note No

 (Rs. In Lakhs Except EPS) 

Year Ended
 31.03.2024

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for year ended 31st, 2024

 For Significant accounting policy and basis of accounting refer note 1 & 2 For an on behalf of Board of Directors of
TAC Infosec Limited

As per our report of even date
For, Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi 
Partner
Membership No. 141168
Signed at Jamnagar on May 24, 2024

Trishneet Arora
CEO & Director
DIN: 07567604
Place : Mohali

Charanjit Singh
Whole Time Director

DIN:07567588
Place : Mohali

Sharon Arora
Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
Place : Delhi

Vishal Jain
Chief Financial 

officer
Place : Pune

UDIN : 24141168BKAGAZ4463
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TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended on 31st March, 2024. 

Sr. No.

A

Particular

Cash flow from Operating Activities

B Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before taxation
Adjustment for Depreciation & Impairment::
Depreciation & Impairment
(Profit)/Loss On Sale of Fixed Assets Shares
Finance Costs
Investment Income
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/-Increase in Inventories
Decrease/-Increase in Trade Receivable and other current assets
Increase/-Decrease in Trade Payables
Increase/-Decrease in Current Liabilities/Provisions
Sub-Total Movement in Working Capital
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets
Capital Reserve on Investment in Wholly owned subsidiary
Interest Income from Investment
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-123.99
 1.45
-3.19

-125.72

C Cash flow from financing activities

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on 
Cash Flow Statement.

Cash flow form financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowing / (Repayment of borrowing) 
Finance Costs
NET CASH CLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
Cash on Hand 
With bank
 In current account 44.58
 In Fixed deposit 8.01

131.80
-16.06

115.74
-227.67
 287.37
  59.70

7.11

44.58
8.01

635.01

24.97

16.06
3.19

679.23

-758.61
-12.49
-23.54

-794.64
-115.41
-102.27
-217.68

For an on behalf of Board of Directors of
TAC Infosec Limited

As per our report of even date
For, Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi 
Partner
Membership No. 141168
Signed at Jamnagar on May 24, 2024

Trishneet Arora
CEO & Director
DIN: 07567604
Place : Mohali

Charanjit Singh
Whole Time Director

DIN:07567588
Place : Mohali

Sharon Arora
Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
Place : Delhi

Vishal Jain
Chief Financial 

officer
Place : Pune

(Amount in lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2024

UDIN : 24141168BKAGAZ4463
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Sr. No. Name of Company

Name of Company

TAC Infosec Limited

Period of Consolidation

Country of 
Incorporation

% Holding of
TAC

% of Holding by
others

TAC Security Inc USA 100
Wholly-owned Subsidiary

(w.e.f. 11-03-2024)
1

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act, on an accrual basis.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
lacs (INR ,00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(c)

Accounting policies applicable in consolidated financial statements.(d)

The Company combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, 
liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group 
companies are eliminated.

(1)

TAC Security Inc

01-Apr-2023 to 31-Mar-2024

11-Mar-2024 to 31-Mar-2024

The consolidated statement of Profit and loss of the company comprises of the standalone profit and loss balances of following 
group companies:

(2)

Particular 

Assets

Conversion Rate

Liabilities

Closing rate i.e. as on March 31, 2024

Closing rate i.e. as on March 31, 2024

Expense

Income

Average rate

Average rate

Foreign Subsidiaries financials where converted in accordance with AS 11 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" and 
effect for foreign currency transalation reserve was given in consolidated financials
Conversion rates were considered as under :

(3)

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended on March 31, 2024

Consolidated as

1 (a)
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of TAC Infosec Limited (the ‘Company’), and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31st March 2024. The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in 
accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company on May 24, 2024

(b) The consolidated financial statements include results of the Subsidiary company of TAC Infosec Limited; consolidated in accordance 
with AS 21 'Consolidated Financial Statements'.
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As at
 31st March 2024 

4  Reserves & Surplus: 

 Securities Premium 
 Opening Balance                              1.00 
 Closing Balance (A) 1.00                             

 Surplus in Profit & Loss 
 Opening Balance                         732.13 
 Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period                         633.04 
 Less : Utilised for issue of Bonus Shares                       -720.00 
 Closing Balance (B) 645.17                        

 Capital Reserve 1.76                             

 Foreign Currency Transalation Reserve -0.30                           

                        647.62 

5

6

 Other Current Liabilities : 
 Duties & Taxes                           49.65 
 Other Payables                           47.68 
 Advances from Customer                              1.80 

99.13                         

-                
 Trade Receivable : 

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
 UnsecuredConsidered good                         524.59 

Outstanding for a period not exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
 Unsecured Considered Good                         617.03 

1,141.62                    

Figures For the Current Reporting Period as on March 31, 2024

Less than 6 
Months

6 Months -
1Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

617.03                  499.68                 24.91                    -                      1,141.62                            
-                         -                         -                         -                                                             
-                         -                         -                         -                      -                                       
-                         -                         -                         -                      -                                       
-                         -                         -                         -                      -                                       

617.03                  499.68                 24.91                    -                      1,141.62

7                       Cash and Bank Balances: 

 Cash on Hand                              7.11 
 Balances with Banks                           44.58 
 Fixed Deposits                              8.01 

 more than 3 upto 12 months                                    -   
 more than 12 months                              8.01 

59.70                          

9 Upto March 31, 2023 company does not have subsidiary, associate or joint venture. 
Thus this being the first year of consolidated financial statements previous comparatives are not available

Total

Others
Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Note 6.1: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods

Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods

Total

Total

Particulars

Note Particulars

 Total (A +B) 

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet
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As at
 31st March 2024 

8  Other expense 

a. Business Promotion Expenses 0.26                                                                    

b. Repair and Maintenance Expenses 2.76                                                                    

c. Rent Expenses 32.03                                                                  

d. Legal & Professional & Commission Expenses & other 

such charges
8.19                                                                    

e. Telephone Expenses 1.22                                                                    

f. Marketing, Advertisement & Business Promotion 

Expenses
25.79                                                                  

g. IT Support Expenses 2.22                                                                    

h. Travelling Expenses 16.10                                                                  

i. Insurance Expenses 1.93                                                                    

j. Tender Fee 0.82                                                                    

k. Subscription and membership fees 2.87                                                                    

l. payment to auditor 13.38                                                                  

m. Other Expenses 32.03                                                                  

ParticularsNote

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Profit and Loss
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To the Members of
TAC INFOSEC LIMITED 

On the Standalone Accounting Standards 
(AS ) Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of TAC

INFOSEC LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise

a) The Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,

b) The Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2024 and

c) Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2024, 

and notes to financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘Standalone AS Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, 

as amended (‘The Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2024, its profit including , its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 



Basis of Opinion Key Audit Matters 
We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with the Standards on Audit-
ing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further de-
scribed in the Auditor’s Responsibili-
ties for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Compa-
ny in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical require-
ments that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013 and the Rules there 
under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in ac-
cordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have ob-
tained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion 
on standalone AS  financial state-
ments. 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were 
of most      significance in our audit of the standalone AS  Financial statements 
for the year ended March 31 2024. These matters were addressed in the con-
text of our audit of the Standalone AS  financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.  

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the 
other information. The other information comprises the information includ-
ed in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including An-
nexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Gover-
nance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone AS  financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
AS  financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materi-
al misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. However, we have nothing to report in this matter. 

Particular Comments

Acquisition of TAC Security Inc We have obtained documentation for
acquisition of TAC Security INC.

We have also verified the same along
with reporting requirements of FEMA

We have also verified the accounting
treatment of the same in standalone
Financial Statement 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exer-
cise professional judgment and maintain profession-
al scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

We communicate with those charged with gover-
nance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in inter-
nal control that we identify during our audit.

The Company’s Management is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone AS financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position and financial 
performance of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards (AS)

This responsibility also includes maintenance of ade-
quate accounting records in accordance with the provi-
sions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Com-
pany and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appro-
priate accounting policies; making judgments and esti-
mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the ac-
counting records, relevant to the preparation and pre-
sentation of the standalone AS  financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from materi-
al misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone AS financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Compa-
ny’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. Board of Directors are also responsible 
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting pro-
cess.  

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Mis-
statements can arise from fraud or error and are con-
sidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstate-
ment of the standalone financial statements, wheth-
er due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not de-
tecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from an error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial con-
trols relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanc-
es. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial con-
trols system in place and the operating effective-
ness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting esti-
mates and related disclosures made by manage-
ment. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or con-
ditions that may cast significant doubt on the Com-
pany’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone finan-
cial statements or, if such disclosures are inade-
quate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the stand-
alone financial statements represent the underly-
ing transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to commu-
nicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our inde-
pendence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the stand-
alone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore reported as key audit matters. We de-
scribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) 
of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annex-
ure-A”, a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent ap-
plicable.  

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that: - 

 

1.

2.

We have sought and obtained all the informa-
tion and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit.  

In our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Compa-
ny so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.  

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of ac-
count. The company is having Tally system for 
maintenance of books of accounts through 
which Standard Trial Balance of TAC Infosec Lim-
ited is being generated and consolidated 
through the system. 

In our opinion, the aforesaid AS  financial state-
ments comply with the Indian Accounting Stan-
dards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with relevant rules issued there under. 

a.

 The observations relating to the maintenance of 
accounts and other matters connected there-
with are as stated in the Emphasis of Matter 
paragraph above.   

On the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be includ-
ed in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, 
as amended: 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the managerial 
remuneration paid by the Company to its direc-
tors during the current year is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act, 
read with Schedule V of the Act. The remunera-
tion paid to any director is according to the spe-
cial resolution passed in meeting dated October 
24, 2023. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has 
not prescribed other details under Section 
197(16) which are required to be commented 
upon by us.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our sepa-
rate Report in “Annexure B”. 

(a) The respective Managements of the Compa-
ny and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India, whose financial state-
ments have been audited under the Act, have 
represented to us that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are mate-
rial either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other 
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Inter-
mediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Inter-
mediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, securi-
ty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficia-
ries. 

e.

f.

g.

h.

i.

b.

c.

d.
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(b) The respective Managements of the Company 
and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporat-
ed in India, whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act, have represented to us that, 
to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the ag-
gregate) have been received by the Company or any 
of such subsidiaries from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or other-
wise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other per-
sons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Bene-
ficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the cir-
cumstances performed by us on the Company and 
its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in 
India whose financial statements have been audited 
under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provid-
ed under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-
statement. 

For Maharishi & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 124872W 

Kapil Sanghvi 
Partner 
Membership No. 141168 
UDIN: 24141168BKAGAY9447  
Date:  May 24, 2024 
Place : Jamnagar 

With respect to the other matters to be includ-
ed in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explana-
tions given to us:

(a) The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in its 
AS financial statements – Refer Note No. 33 to 
the AS  financial statements.   

(c) The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 

j.

For the financial year 2023-24, based on our ex-
amination which included test checks and infor-
mation given to us, the Company has used ac-
counting software Tally for maintaining its 
books of account, which did not have a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility through-
out the year for all relevant transactions record-
ed in the respective software, and hence audit 
trail is not enabled throughout the period. 

h.

 
Annexure-A to Independent Auditor’s Report  
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

i.  Fixed Assets   
(i) The Company is maintaining the Property, Plant 
& Equipment records on Tally platform. Property, 
Plant & Equipment records contain full particulars 
including classification, quantitative details and loca-
tion.  

(ii) The Company is maintaining the Intangible 
Assets records on Tally platform. Intangible records 
contain full particulars of such assets.

According to information provided by the manage-
ment, the company has a performed physical verifi-
cation, and no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency 
of verification is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the company and the nature of its assets. 

Based on the information and explanation provided 
to us, company do not own any immovable proper-
ty and hence this clause is not applicable to the 
company 

Based on the information and explanation provided 
to us, the company has not carried out any revalua-
tion activity of its Property Plant and Equipment 
and therefore this clause is not applicable to the 
company. 

Based on information and explanation provided to 
us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pend-
ing against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibi-
tion) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereun-
der and therefore this clause is not applicable to 
the company.   
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e. Based upon information and explanation provided 
to us, the company has granted following loans 
which are either repayable on demand or loans 
without any terms or period of repayment. 
 

a.

ii.  Inventories 

Nature of company is service provider and provides 
cyber Security and Vulnerability management, 
hence Company is not required to maintain any 
inventory records. Therefore this clause is not appli-
cable to the company.  

iv.  Loans, Investments, Guarantees and Securities 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, company have grant-
ed loans to directors as below as part of the condi-
tions of service extended by the company to all its 
employees. 

v.  Deposits 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposit and hence the provisions of 
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act and the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 with regard to the deposits 
accepted is not applicable to the Company. There-
fore, the provision of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of 
“the Order” is not applicable to the Company.  

vi.  Cost Records  

The Central Government has not prescribed mainte-
nance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 therefore clause (v) of para-
graph 3 of “the Order” is not applicable to the Com-
pany. 

Except above company have complied with provi-
sions of Section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 
2013

a.

iii.  Loans/ Guarantees/ Securities Provided

From Financial Statements as provided to us and 
as informed to us, company has made invest-
ments in, provided guarantee and/or security 
and/or granted loans or advances in the nature 
of secured/unsecured loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships, and other Parties.
(i) I No Loans, Advances, Guarantees and Securi-
ties were granted or provided to Subsidiaries, 
Associates and Joint Ventures.  
 
(ii) Details of Aggregate amount of Loans, Advanc-
es, Guarantees and Securities made to other 
than Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 
are as below-

b.

c.

d.

Based on the information and explanation pro-
vided to us, the terms and conditions of the 
grant of all loans and advances in the nature of 
loans and guarantees provided are not prejudi-
cial to the company’s interest. 

As informed to us, the schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest of Loans has 
been stipulated and repayments or receipts are 
regular.

Based upon information and explanation provid-
ed to us, the company has not renewed any 
loans or granted fresh loans for the loans falling 
due this year and therefore this sub-clause is not 
applicable to the company.  
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c.

d.

e.

As informed to us, the company has not utilised the 
funds raised on short term basis for long term pur-
poses. 

According to the information and explanations to 
the extent provided to us, the company has not 
taken obtained any funds from lenders to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures. 

According to the information and explanations to 
the extent provided to us, the company has not 
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies and therefore this sub-clause 
is not applicable to the company.

a.

vi.  Statutory Dues 

According to the information given to us, the Com-
pany is generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employ-
ee's State Insurance, Income Tax, Value Added Tax, 
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, GST, CESS 
and other applicable statutory dues with the appro-
priate authorities. As per information and explana-
tions given to us there are no arrears of undisputed 
statutory dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2024, 
for the period of more than six months from the 
date they become payable.  

a.

b.

vi. IPO/FPO/Private Placement/Preferential 
      Allotment

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company was in 
process of listing as on 31st March, 2024 but has 
not raised money by way of Initial Public Offer or 
further Public Offer during the Year. 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised money by way of Private Placement. 

a.

b.

c.

xi. Fraud 

During our examination of the books and records 
of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud 
on the company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

No report has been filed by the us in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government 
under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of Companies 
Act, 2013. 

We have not come across any whistle-blower 
complaints made in the company during the year. 

xii. Nidhi Company 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as defined 
under section 406 of Companies Act, 2013. There-
fore, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

vi. Undisclosed Income

As informed to us and on basis of explanations provid-
ed to us, the company has not surrendered or disclosed 
any transaction not recorded in books of accounts as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

b. According to the information and explanations to 
the extent provided to us, the details there are no 
disputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employee's State Insurance, Income Tax, Value 
Added Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 
GST, CESS and other applicable statutory dues. 

a.

b.

As informed to us and on basis of explanations pro-
vided to us, the company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

As informed to us, company is not declared as a 
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or other lender.

ix. Repayment of Loans and Other Borrowings 
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xiii. Related Party Transactions 

In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the Company is in compli-
ance with section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013, where applicable, for all the transactions with 
related parties and the details of related party trans-
actions have been disclosed in Note No. 33 to the 
financial statements. 

xx. Corporate Social Responsibility 

xiv. Internal Audit

On the basis of Information and explanations given to 
us the requirement of Section 138 related to internal 
audit is not applicable to the company up to 31st 
Mach, 2024 

xv. Non-Cash Transactions with Directors 

As per the information and explanation given to us, 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transac-
tions with directors or persons connected with 
him/her. 

xvi. NBFC Registration 

The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
as NBFC. Therefore, clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of “the 
order” is not applicable to the Company. 

xvii. Cash Losses

During our examination of the books and records of 
the Company, carried out in accordance with the gen-
erally accepted auditing practices in India, and accord-
ing to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not incurred cash losses in the 
Financial Year.  

xviii. Resignation by Statutory Auditors

As informed to us and on basis of explanations pro-
vided to us, we are the statutory auditors from pre-
ceding seven financial years. Therefore, clause (xviii) 
of paragraph 3 of “the order” is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xix. Material Uncertainty 

According to the information and explanations to the 
extent provided to us and on basis of financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, 
the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans, we are of opinion that no materi-
al uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report and that the company is capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. 

a.

b.

According to the information and explanations to 
the extent provided to us, no amount is required to 
be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to 
the Companies Act within a period of six months of 
the expiry of the financial year in compliance with 
second proviso to subsection (5) of section 135 of 
the Act. 

As informed to us, the company has transferred no 
unspent amount under section 135(5) of Compa-
nies Act, 2013 to special account in compliance with 
the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act.

For Maharishi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi
Partner
Membership No. 141168
UDIN: 24141168BKAGAY9447
Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Jamnagar
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls for financial reporting under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘The act’) 

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of TAC INFOSEC LIMITED 

(‘The company’) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone AS financial 

statement of the company for the year ended on that date. 



Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting. 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purpose in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that 

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Char-
tered Accountants of India (‘ICAI”). These responsibili-
ties include the design, implementation and mainte-
nance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, and accuracy and completeness of the account-
ing records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the com-
pany’s internal financial controls over financial report-
ing based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Inter-
nal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appli-
cable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoun-
tants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included ob-
taining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal con-
trol based on the assessed risk. The procedures select-
ed depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatement due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteri-
orate.

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Control over 
Financial Reporting 

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rea-
sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with general-
ly accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorization 
of the management and directors of the compa-
ny; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding preven-
tion or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effec-
tively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal con-
trol over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For Maharishi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi
Partner
Membership No. 141168
UDIN: 24141168BKAGAY9447
Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Jamnagar 
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TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2024

(Amount in lakhs)

 Sr. No.   Note 
No. 

As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2023

A
Share Holders Fund

3 765.00                                     45.00                                        
4 646.30                                     733.13                                     

-                                             
1,411.30                                                                      778.13 

-                                             
B

-                                             -                                             
-                                             

C
5 5.06                                           16.20                                        
6 -                                             1.30                                           
7 5.20                                           -                                             

10.26                                        17.50                                        
-                                             D -                                             

8 162.67                                     19.73                                        
-                                             

10.26                                        
                                                 -   

                                           4.92                                         27.67 

10 72.73                                                                             110.52 
11 94.53                                                                                89.28 

345.11                                     247.20                                     
1,766.67                                 1,042.83                                 

E

12 71.13                                                                                79.17 
-                                             -                                             
-                                             -                                             

12 107.05                                                                                      -   
(b) Non Current Investment 13 0.84                                           -                                             

14 2.22                                           -                                             
15 187.14                                     89.55                                        

368.38                                     168.72                                     

F
16 1,142.14                                 436.65                                     
17 52.42                                        287.37                                     
18 89.74                                        76.19                                        
19 113.99                                     73.90                                        

1,398.29                                 874.11                                     
1,766.67                                 1,042.83                                 

For Significant accounting policy and basis of accounting refer note 1 & 2

As per our even report dated
For, Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi Trishneet Arora Charanjit Singh
Partner CEO & Director Whole Time Director
Membership No. 141168 DIN: 07567604 DIN:07567588
Signed at Jamnagar on May 24, 2024 Place : Mohali Place : Mohali
UDIN : 24141168BKAGAY9447

Sharon Arora Vishal Jain
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer

Chief Financial 
officer

Place : Delhi Place : Pune

(d) Other Current Liabilities
Sub-Total (D)

Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible assets

Sub-Total (E)

 I.   Tangible Assets 

(d) Other Non Current Asset
(c) Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

ASSETS:

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES (A+B+C+D)

 (I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 
 (Ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

9

EQUITY:
Equity & Liabilities:

(a)Share Capital
(b)Reserves & Surplus

(b) Trade Payables

Share Application Money Pending Allotment:
Sub-Total (B)

Non Current Liabilities:

 Particulars 

 II. Intangible Assets 
 III.  Capital Work-in-progress 

TOTAL ASSETS (E+F)

LIABILITIES:

(c)Money Received Against Share Warrants
Sub-Total (A)

(a) Long Term Borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Long Term Provisions

(c) Short Term Provisions

For an on behalf of Board of Directors of
TAC Infosec Limited

 iv. Intangible Asset Under Development 

(d) Short Term Loans and Advances
Sub-Total (F)

Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables
(b) Cash and Bank Balances
(c) Other Current Assets

Sub-Total (C)

Current Liabilities:
(a) Short Term Borrowings
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 Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for year ended 31st March, 2024

Sr. No  Particulars 
 Note 

No 
 Year ended 

31.03.2024  
 Year ended 

31.03.2023 

I Income from Operations 20                                               1,161.79                                    1,000.01 
II Other Income 21                                                      22.80                                             9.54 
III  Total Income (I+II)                                         1,184.59                                    1,009.55 
IV Expenses

a Cost of materials consumed                                                        -                                                     -   
b Purchase of traded goods                                                        -                                                     -   
c Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-

progress and stock-in-trade

                                                       -                                                     -   

d Employee benefits expense 22                                                   368.85                                        128.71 
e Finance Costs 23                                                      16.06                                             8.82 
f Depreciation and amortisation expenses 24                                                      24.97                                           24.60 
g Other expenses 25                                                   139.57                                        334.88 

Total Expenses                                             549.45                                        497.01 
V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items                                             635.14 512.54                                       
VI Exceptional items                                                        -                                                     -   
VII Profit/(Loss) Before tax (V-VI)                                             635.14 512.54                                       
VIII Tax expenses 1.97                                                 -                                               

a Current Tax (incl. income tax of earlier years) 5.49                                                 -                                               
b Deferred tax                                                 -3.52 -                                               

IX Profit/(Loss) for the period                                             633.17 512.54                                       
X Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share 8.28                                                 6.70                                            

For Significant accounting policy and basis of accounting refer note 1 & 2

As per our even report dated
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Kapil Sanghvi Trishneet Arora Charanjit Singh

Partner CEO & Director Whole Time Director
Membership No. 141168 DIN: 07567604 DIN:07567588

Signed at Jamnagar on May 24,  2024 Place : Mohali Place : Mohali

UDIN : 24141168BKAGAY9447

Sharon Arora Vishal Jain
Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer

Chief Financial 

officer

Place : Delhi Place : Pune

         TAC Infosec Limited

 (Rs. In Lakhs Except EPS) 

                 For an on behalf of Board of Directors of
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TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended on 31st March, 2024. 

(Amount in lakhs)

 Year ended   Year ended  
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

A Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before taxation 635.14                                    512.54                                   
Adjustment for:
Depreciation & Impairment 24.97                                       24.60                                      
(Profit)/Loss On Sale of Fixed Assets Shares -                                           
Finance Costs 16.06                                       8.82                                        
Investment  Income 3.19                                          -14.27                                    
Operating Profit before working capital changes 679.36                                    531.68                                   
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/-Increase in Inventories -                                           
Decrease/-Increase in Trade Receivable and other current assets -759.12                                   -477.13                                 
Increase/-Decrease in Trade Payables -12.49                                     0.95                                        
Increase/-Decrease in Current Liabilities/Provisions -28.14                                     191.52                                   
Sub-Total Movement in Working Capital -799.75                                   -284.66                                 
Cash generated from operations -120.39                                   247.02                                   
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) -102.28                                   -89.55                                    
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -222.67                                   157.47                                   

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets -123.99                                   -9.65                                       
Interest Income from Investment -3.19                                        14.27                                      
Investment in Wholly owned subsidiary -0.84                                        -                                          
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -128.02                                   4.63                                        

C Cash flow form financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowing / (Repayment of borrowing) 131.80                                    -37.85                                    
Finance Costs -16.06                                     -8.82                                       
NET CASH CLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 115.74                                    -46.67                                    

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) -234.95                                   115.43                                   
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 287.37                                    171.94                                   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 52.42                                       287.37                                   
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
Cash on Hand 2.94                                          0.03                                        
With bank
 In current account 41.47                                       115.31                                   
 In Fixed deposit 8.01                                          172.03                                   

As per our even report dated
For, Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 124872W

Trishneet Arora Charanjit Singh
Kapil Sanghvi CEO & Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 07567604 DIN:07567588
Membership No. 141168 Place : Mohali Place : Mohali

Signed at Jamnagar on May 24, 2024

Sharoon Arora Vishal Jain
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer

Chief Financial 
officer

Place : Delhi Place : Pune

For an on behalf of Board of Directors of
TAC Infosec Limited

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statement.

Sr. No.  Particular 

REPORT Page 79



TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes on Accounts and Significant Accounting Policies

1. Corporate Information

TAC Infosec Limited is a Public limited Company 
domiciled in India. The Company offers risk-based 
solutions for vulnerability management and assess-
ment, cyber security quantification, and penetration 
testing in a SaaS model

III. Fixed Assets
A) Tangible Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated de-
preciation and impairment losses. Cost comprises 
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bring-
ing the asset to its working condition for its intended 
use.

B) Intangible Asset
Research Asset are recorded as intnagible asset only 
when company can demonstrate

1) The technical feasibility of completing the intangi-
ble asset so that it will be available for use or sale
2) Its intention to complete and its ability and inten-
tion to use or sell the asset
3) How asset will generate future economic benefit
4) The availability of resources to complete the asset
5) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure 
during development Subsequently, following initial 
recognition of the development expenditure as an 
asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset 
to be carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development 
is complete and the asset is available for use.
It is amortized over the period of expected future 
benefit. Amoritzation is recognised in profit and loss. 
During the developement period asset is tested an-
nually for impairment

IV. Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 
Current income-tax is measured at the amount ex-
pected to be paid to the tax authorities in accor-
dance with the Income-tax Act,1961 enacted in India 
and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdic-
tions where the company operates. The tax rates 
and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, 
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items 
recognized in equity and in the statement of profit & 
loss. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of 
timing differences between taxable income and ac-
counting income originating during the current year 
and reversal of timing differences for the earlier 
years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to 
items recognized directly in equity is recognized in 
equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable 
timing differences. 

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the company have been 
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The 
company has prepared these financial statements 
to comply in all material respects with the account-
ing standards notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of financial statements are consistent with those of 
previous year, except for the change in accounting 
policy explained below, If any

2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

I. Depreciation on fixed assets
Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line 
Method according to useful lives of assets as provid-
ed in schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depre-
ciation for assets purchases/sold during period is 
proportionately charged.

Useful lives of tangible assets (Years)
Building - 30
Office equipment - 5
Motorbus/Car - 8
General furniture and fittings - 10
Electric Installation & Equipment - 10
Computer & Data processing units - 3
Motor Cycles, Scooters and other mopeds - 10
Plant & Machinery other than continuous process 
plant - 15

II. Use of estimates
The Preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabili-
ties, at the end of the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on the management's best knowl-
edge of current events and actions, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in the 
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carry-
ing amounts of assets and liabilities in future periods.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible 
timing differences only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such de-
ferred tax assets can be realized. In situations 
where the company has unabsorbed depreciation 
or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets 
are recognized only if there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
they can be realized against future taxable profits.

In the situations where the company is entitled to 
a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enact-
ed in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective 
tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax 
(asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing 
differences which reverse during the tax holiday 
period, to the extent the company’s gross total
income is subject to the deduction during the tax 
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing 
differences which reverse after the tax holiday 
period is recognized in the year in which the timing 
differences originate. However, the company 
restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the 
extent that it has become reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For 
recognition of deferred taxes, the timing differenc-
es which originate first are considered to reverse 
first. 

At each reporting date, the company re-assesses 
unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes un-
recognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it 
has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, 
as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such de-
ferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

The company is eligible for exemption of 100% tax 
u/s 80IAC from Assessement year 2023-24 and 
company has opted the same from the Assesse-
ment year 2023-24 which will be available for three 
consecutive years. Certificate of eligible business 
under section 80 IAC is obatined from Ministry of 
Commerece & Industry on 10/03/2023 .

V. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders (after deducting preference divi-
dends and attributable taxes) by the weighted aver-
age number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a frac-
tion of an equity share to the extent that they are 
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully 
paid equity share during the reporting period.
The weighted average number of equity shares out-
standing during the period is adjusted for events 
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, 
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of 
shares) that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change 
in resources.

Company has issued 72,00,000 shares by way if 
bonus on January 11, 2024 in ratio of 16 : 1 i.e. 16 
bonus shares for every one share held 

VI. Segment Reporting
The company is engaged primarily in the business of 
software services and accordingly there are no sepa-
rate reportable segments as per Accounting Stan-
dard 17 dealing with Segment Reporting.

VII. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic bene�ts will �ow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The following speci�c 
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

(a) Sale of Services
Revenue from sale of is recognized when service is per-
formed, either proportinately or on completion of service. 
The company collects all types of taxes such as Goods & 
Service Tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, 
these are not economic bene�ts �owing to the company. 
Hence, they are excluded from revenue. 

VIII. Provisions
A provision is recognized when the company has a present 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 
not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obliga-
tion at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best 
estimates.
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Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU ex-
ceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is consid-
ered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cur-
rent market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net 
selling price, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if available. If no such transactions can 
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. An assessment is made at each reporting date 
as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the assumptions used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impair-
ment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so 
that the carrying amount of the asset does not 
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carry-
ing amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recog-
nized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is rec-
ognized in the statement of profit and loss unless 
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

XIII. Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intend-
ed to be held for not more than one year from the 
date on which such investments are made, are classi-
fied as current investments. All other investments 
are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured 
at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and direct-
ly attributable acquisition charges such as broker-
age, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or 
partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other secu-
rities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the secu-
rities issued. If an investment is acquired in ex-
change for another asset, the acquisition is deter-
mined by reference to the fair value of the asset
given up or by reference to the fair value of the 
investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evi-
dent. On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net disposal pro-
ceeds is charged or
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

IX. Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more un-
certain future events beyond the control of the compa-
ny or a present obligation that is not recognized be-
cause it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it 
cannot be measured reliably. The company does 
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

X. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash 
flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and 
shortterm investments with an original maturity of 
three months or less.

XI. Retirement and other employee benefits
(a) Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a 
defined contribution scheme. The company has no ob-
ligation, other than the contribution payable to the 
provident fund. The company recognizes contribution 
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expendi-
ture, when an employee renders the related service. If 
the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the 
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the 
scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the 
contribution already paid. If the contribution already 
paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then excess 
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre 
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in 
future payment or a cash refund. 

(b) Gratuity
Company has recorded gratuity provision in accor-
dance with acturial report done for the year ended 
March 31,2024, Further company has not created any 
gratuity fund as on date of balance sheet

XII. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The company assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment test-
ing for an asset is required, the company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The 
recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows 
that are largely independent of those from other 
assets or groups of assets. 
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XIV.Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the 
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign cur-
rency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and 
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated 
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting 
date.
Non—monetary items, which are measured in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign 
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction.
Non—monetary items, which are measured at fair 
value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date when such value was determined.

Treatment of exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement / restate-
ment of foreign currency monetary assets and liabil-
ities of the
Company are recognised as income or expense in 
the statement of profit and loss.
 

XV.Borrowing Cost
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortisation of 
ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisi-
tion, construction or production of an asset that nec-
essarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the respective asset. Allother bor-
rowing costs are expensed in the period they occur
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(Figures in Lakhs except no. of shares)
Note No. 2  Share Capital:

Number Amount Rs. Number  Amount Rs. 

Authorized Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 130,00,000          1,300.00                   5,00,000              50.00                     

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 76,50,000             765.00                       4,50,000              45.00                     

76,50,000                  765.00                            4,50,000              45.00                     

 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the 
beginning and at the end of the reporting period - 

No of Shares Amount of Shares No. Of shares Amount in Rs.

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year                      4,50,000                                45.00 4,50,000                                   45.00 

 Add : Bonus Shares issued during the year                   72,00,000                             720.00 -                                                        -   
 Add : Right shares issued during the year                                     -                                          -   -                                                        -   
 Less : Shares bought back during the year                                     -                                          -   -                                                        -   

                  76,50,000                             765.00 4,50,000              45.00                     

 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares 

No. of Shares  % of total holding No. of Shares  % of total 
holding 

 Trishneet Arora                   56,60,830 74% 3,33,000              74%
 Vijay Kishanlal Kedia                   11,47,500 15% 67,500                  15%
 Ankit Vijay Kedia                      3,82,500 5% 22,500                  5%

                  71,90,830 94%               4,23,000 94%

Details of Promoters group Shareholding at the end of year 

No. of Shares %
%Change

 During 
the year

No. of Shares %
%Change 

during 
the year

Trishneet Arora 56,60,830           74.00% 0 3,33,000 74.00% 0.00
Charanjeet Singh 3,05,830             4.00% 0 18,000 4.00% 0.00
Avneet Singh 170                        0.002% 0 0 -                        -                        
Sukhpreet kaur 170                        0.002% 0 0 -                        -                        

Total 59,67,000          78.00% 0 3,51,000 78.00% 0.00

Particular

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March 2023 

TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL

 Outstanding at the end of the period 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a per share value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 

 Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March 2023

 TOTAL 

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Name of Promoter

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March 2023
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As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

4                    Reserves & Surplus: 

 Securities Premium 
 Opening Balance                          1.00                              1.00 
 Closing Balance (A) 1.00                         1.00                             

 Surplus in Profit & Loss 
 Opening Balance                     732.13                         219.59 
 Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period                     633.17                         512.54 
 Less : Utilised for issue of Bonus shares                   -720.00                                   -   
 Closing Balance (B) 645.30                    732.13                        

                    646.30                         733.13 

5                    Long Term Borrowings: 

 Secured Loans 

 ICICI Bank Car Loan                          4.55                              7.84 
 HDFC Car Loan                          0.51                              0.99 
 Bajaj Finance Loan                                -                                7.36 

                         5.06                           16.20 

5.1                Terms & Conditions 

(a)  Loans from ICICI Bank 

(b)  Loans from HDFC Bank 

(c)  Loans from Bajaj Finance 

6                   
 Deferred Tax Assets (Liability) / Deferred 
Tax (Assets) (Net) : 

 Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)                                -                                1.30 
-                            1.30                             

7                    Long term Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity 5.20                                                           -   

                         5.20                                   -   

8                    Short Term Borrowings : 
 Secured Loan : 
 Cash Credit                     148.72                                   -   
 Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowing                        13.95                           19.73 

                    162.67                           19.73 

Note

Total

 Total (A +B) 

 Total 

 Total 

Particulars

 Total 

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet

 Secured against Car and Repayale in Monthly Installment of Rs. 39,675/- each month with an 
annualised 

 Secured against Car and Repayble in Monthly Installment of Rs. 5,842/- each month with an 
annualised interest rate of 9.5% 

 Secured against Car and Repayable in Monthly Installment of Rs. 1,18,930/- each month with an 
annualised interest rate of 11% 
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As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

Note Particulars

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet

8.1                Terms & Conditions 

(a)  Cash Credit  

Company is sanctioned Cash credit of Rs 150 Lacs

Annualised interest rate on Cash Credit is 10.05%
Cash credit is repayable on demand 

9                    Trade Payables : 

 Total outstanding dues of creditors  to Micro 

Enterprises & Small Enterprise                        10.26                                   -   
 Total outstanding dues of creditors  other 

than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprise                          4.92                           27.67 

15.18                       27.67                          

Disclosure relating to Sec 22 of MSMED Act, 2006
 Particular 

                       10.26 -                               
                               -   -                               
                               -   -                               
                               -   -                               
                               -   -                               

10.26                       -                               

Figures For the Current Reporting Period as on March 31, 2024

Less than 1 
Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

10.26            -                -                 -                     
4.92               -                -                 -                     -                            

-                 -                -                 -                     
-                 -                -                 -                     

15.18            -                -                 -                     

Disclosure relating to Sec 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

Principal 
outstanding

Interest 
Paid

Interest 
due and 
payable

Interest 
accrued and 

unpaid

Interest due in 
succeeding 

year

10.26            -                -                 -                     

Others
Dispute dues-MSME

Amount

Particulars

Total

Dispute dues -Others
Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

MSME

Principal outstanding
Interest Paid
Interest due and payable
Interest accrued and unpaid
Interest due in succeeding year

Cash Credit is secured against Book debts

Total
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As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

Note Particulars

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet

Figures For Previous Reporting Period as on March 31, 2023

Less than 1 
Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

Total

-                -                -                -                    
27.67            -                -                -                    

-                -                -                -                    
-                -                -                -                    

27.67           -                -                -                    

10                 Short Term Provisions 

 Provision for employee benefit 
 Gratuity                          1.76                                   -   

 Sub total                          1.76                                   -   

 Other provision 
  Support Services                                -                             45.00 
  Taxation                        66.32                           65.52 
  Audit fees                          4.50                                   -   
  Others                          0.16                                   -   

 Sub total                        70.97                         110.52 

72.73                       110.52                        

11                 Other Current Liabilities : 
 Duties & Taxes                        45.05                           59.09 
 Other Payables                        47.68                           29.21 
 Director Remuneration                                -                                     -   
 Advances from Customer                          1.80                              0.98 

94.53                       89.28                          

13                 Non Current Investment 

 Investement in Wholly owned Subsidiary 
company 
 TAC Security INC                          0.84                                   -   

 (70,20,000 Shares of face value of $ 0.00001) 

0.84                         -                                  

14                 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) : 
 Deferred Tax Assets                          2.22                                   -   

2.22                         -                               

Total

Total

Total

Total

Others
Dispute dues-MSME
Dispute dues-Others

Total

Particulars

MSME

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

Note Particulars

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet

15                 Other Non Current Asset : 
                    187.14                           89.55 

187.14                    89.55                          

16                 Trade Receivable : 

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
 Unsecured Considered good                     525.11                              6.89 

Outstanding for a period not exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
 Unsecured Considered Good                     617.03                         429.76 

1,142.14                436.65                        

Figures For the Current Reporting Period as on March 31, 2024

Less than 6 

Months

6 Months -

1Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

617.03          500.20         24.91            -                     1,142.14                
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            

617.03         500.20         24.91            -                     1,142.14                

Figures For Previous Reporting Period as on March 31, 2023

Less than 6 
Months

6 Months -

1Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

429.76 4.05 2.84 -                     436.65
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            
-                 -                -                 -                     -                            

429.76 4.05 2.84 0.00 436.65

17                  Cash and Bank Balances: 

 Cash on Hand                          2.94                              0.03 
 Balances with Banks                        41.47                         115.31 
 Fixed Deposits                          8.01                         172.03 

 more than 3 upto 12 months 
 more than 12 months                          8.01                         172.03 

52.42                       287.37                        

Balances with Govt. Authority (MAT Credit entitlement)

Total

Total

Total

Total

Note 16: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars

Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful

Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Others

Total

Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful

Others

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful
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As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

Note Particulars

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet

18                 Other Current Assets: 

 Other Current Assets                        89.73                           76.19 

89.73                       76.19                          

19                 Short Term Loans and Advances : 

 Loans to Directors                        68.33                           35.11 
 Advances to group companies                        18.98                           26.69 
 Loans and advances to staff                        11.25                                   -   
 Other Loan & Advances                        15.44                           10.32 
 Amount with Government Authorities                                -                                1.77 

113.99                    73.90                          Total

Total
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(Rs.in Lakhs)

 As At  As At 

31ST March 2024 31st March 2023

20 Revenue from Operations :

Cyber Security Service Income 1,161.79                                                      930.96                                                          
Unbilled Revnue -                                                                 69.05                                                            

                                                     1,161.79                                                      1,000.01 

21 Other Income

Amount written off 11.25                                                            -4.73                                                             
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 8.37                                                               -                                                                 
Interest Received 3.19                                                               14.27                                                            

                                                            22.80                                                                9.54 

22  Employee Benefit Expenses:

Salary, Wages & Bonus 310.97                                                          65.11                                                            
Directors Remuneration 49.60                                                            63.60                                                            
Gratuity 1.34                                                               
Staff Welfare 6.94                                                               

                                                          128.71                                                           368.85

23 Finance Cost

Bank Interest 4.44                                                               5.67                                                               
Other interest 9.53                                                               2.88                                                               
Other borrowing cost 2.09                                                               0.27                                                               

16.06 8.82                                                               

24 Depreciation 24.97                                                            24.60                                                            

25  Other Expenses :

a. Business Promotion Expenses 0.26                                                               0.11                                                               
b. Repair and Maintenance Expenses 2.76                                                               4.52                                                               
c. Rent Expenses 32.03                                                            29.15                                                            
d. Legal & Professional & Commission Expenses & 

other such charges
                                                               8.19                                                                3.57 

e. Telephone Expenses 1.22                                                               -                                                                 
f. Marketing, Advertisement & Business Promotion 

Expenses
                                                            25.79                                                                6.72 

g. IT Support Expenses 2.22                                                               3.65                                                               
h. Travelling Expenses 16.10                                                            13.77                                                            
i. Insurance Expenses 1.93                                                               1.76                                                               
j. Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss -                                                                 34.53                                                            
k. Tender Fee 0.82                                                               5.00                                                               
l. Subscription and membership fees 2.87                                                               6.75                                                               
m. Works Contract -                                                                 205.58                                                          
n. payment to auditor 13.38                                                            -                                                                 
o. Other Expenses 32.03                                                            19.77                                                            

139.57                                                          334.88                                                          

Payment to auditor includes
Statutory Audit Fees 6.25 -                                                                 
Fees for restatement 6.25 -                                                                 
Tax Audit 0.2 -                                                                 
Others 0.68 -                                                                 
Total 13.38 -                                                                 
(The above sum includes 6.25 lacs of pre-operarive expense)

TAC INFOSEC LIMITED
Notes forming part of Profit & Loss Account

Total Other Expenses

Total Other Income

Total Employee Benefit Expenses

Note Particulars

Total Revenue from Operations

Total Finance Cost
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(Rs.in Lakhs )

As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

26 Earning Per Share

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 633.17                                                              512.54                                                            
Nominal value per equity share 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 76,50,000 4,50,000
Basic and Diluted profit per equity share in rupees 8.28 6.70

27 Earnings in foreign Currency

Sale of Services (USD) 10.98                                                                 8.67
Sale of Services (INR) 905.62                                                              719.61

28 Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

a) Capital commitment
There are no capital commitment outstanding as at reporting date 

b) Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities

29 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 4.74                                                                    NA
Amount of Expenditure incurred, 4.74                                                                    NA
Excess paid during the Year NA
Shortfall at the end of the Year NA
Total of previous year shortfall NA
Reason for shortfall, NA
Nature of CSR activities

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant Accounting Standard,
Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision 
during the year shall be shown separately.
Nature of CSR activities
Contribution to trusts/associations for Education
Contribution to trusts/associations for National Heritage and Culture
Contribution to trusts/associations for Disaster Management
Contribution to trusts/associations for Promoting Healthcare
Contribution to trusts/associations for Women Empowerment
Contribution to trusts/associations for Eradicating Hunger, Poverty 4.74                                                                    
CSR Expenditure
Administrative Overheads for CSR Activity
Total CSR Expenditure 4.74                                                                    

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note Particulars
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(Rs.in Lakhs )

As at  As At 
 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note Particulars

30 Disclosure in relation to Gratuity 

Profit and loss account for the period
Current service cost 2.10                                                                    1.19                                                                 
Interest on obligation 0.21                                                                    0.17                                                                 
Expected return on plan assets -                                                                      -                                                                   
Net actuarial loss/(gain) 1.68                                                                    -1.60                                                               
Recognised Past Service Cost-Vested -                                                                      -                                                                   
Recognised Past Service Cost-Unvested -                                                                      -                                                                   
Loss/(gain) on curtailments -                                                                      -                                                                   
Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense 3.99                                                                    -0.24                                                               

Loss/(gain) on obligation -                                                                      -                                                                   
Loss/(gain) on assets -                                                                      -                                                                   
Total Charge to P&L -                                                                      -                                                                   

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 2.97                                                                    3.21                                                                 
Transfer in/(out) obligation -                                                                      -                                                                   
Current service cost 2.10                                                                    1.19                                                                 
Interest cost 0.21                                                                    0.17                                                                 
Actuarial loss (gain) 1.68                                                                    -1.60                                                               
Past Service Cost
Benfits Paid -                                                                      
Prior Yaer Changes
Clsoing Defined Benefit Obligation 6.96                                                                    2.97                                                                 

Table of experience adjustments
Defined Benefit Obligation 6.96                                                                    2.97                                                                 
Plan Assets -                                                                      -                                                                   
Surplus/(Deficit) -6.96                                                                  -2.97                                                               

Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
Net opening provision in books of accounts 2.97                                                                    3.21                                                                 
Transfer in/(out) obligation -                                                                      -                                                                   
Transfer (in)/out plan assets -                                                                      -                                                                   
Employee Benefit Expense 3.99                                                                    -0.24                                                               
Benefits paid by the Company -                                                                      
Contributions to plan assets
Closing provision in books of accounts 6.96                                                                    2.97                                                                 

Bifurcation of liability
Current Liability 1.76                                                                    0.02                                                                 
Non -Crrent Liability 5.20                                                                    2.95                                                                 
Net Liability 6.96                                                                    2.97                                                                 

Principle actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate 7.30% 7.25%
Expected return on Plan Asset NA NA
Salary escalation rate 15.00% 15.00%
Withdrawal rate 40.00% 40.00%
Expected return on Plan Asset

Figures relating to corresponding/previous periods have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current period figures. 32

The company is  eligible for exemption of 100% tax  u/s 80IAC from Assessement year 2023-24 and company has opted the same from the 
Assessement year 2023-24 which will be available for three consecutive years.  Certificate of eligible business under section 80 IAC is obatined 
from Ministry of Commerece & Industry on 10/03/2023. Company has applied for rectification application u/s 154 for opting out from taxation u/s 
115BAA for AY 22-23 & AY 21-22 and withdrawal of Form 10-IC. Hence no provision for Income Tax Expense of Rs.125/- lacs for F.Y. 2022-23 and 
154 Lacs for F.Y. 2023-24 has been made.

31
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(₹ in Lacs)

Tangible Fixed Assets
 Furniture & 

Fixtures 
 Computer & 

Printer 
 Office 

Equipments 
 Motor 
Vehicle 

Total

 Gross Block 

 Opening Balance as on 31st March, 2022                    6.75                  50.04                    2.23                  65.59               124.62 

 Addition -                      8.82                   0.82                   -                      9.65                   

 Deletion -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

 As at 31st March, 2023                    6.75                  58.87                    3.06                  65.59               134.27 

 Addition -                      15.33                 1.61                   -                      16.94                 

 Deletion -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

 As at 31st March, 2024                    6.75                  74.20                    4.67                  65.59               151.21 

Depreciation 

 Opening Balance as on 31st March, 2022                    3.12                  19.79                    0.79                    6.80                  30.50 

 Addition 0.68                   15.13                 0.60                   8.20                   24.60 

 Deletion -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

 As at 31st March, 2023                  34.92                  3.80                    1.38                  15.00                  55.10 
 Addition 0.68                   15.30                 0.77                   8.23                   24.98                 

 Deletion -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

 As at 31st March, 2024                    4.48                  50.22                    2.16                  23.23                  80.08 

Written Down Value

At 31st March, 2023                    2.95                  23.95                    1.67                  50.59                  79.17 

At 31st March, 2024                    2.27                  23.99                    2.51                  42.37                  71.13 

- 

 Note 

No. 12 

Particulars
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7

Intangible Assets under development

Current year (₹ in Lacs)

Particulars
 As at 

April 01, 2023  Additions  
 Disposals/ 

Transfer 

 As at 
March 31, 

2024 
 Intangible Assets under development -                     107.05             -                     107.05             

TOTAL -                     107.05             -                     107.05             

Previous year

 Particulars 
 As at 

April 01, 2022 
 Additions  

 Disposals/ 
Transfer 

 As at 
March 31, 

2023 
 Intangible Assets under development -                     -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL -                     -                     -                     -                     

Note 12.1 for Ageing Schedule of Intangible Asset

Current Year

 Less than 1 
Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
 More than 3 
Years Total

 Projects in Progress 107.05             -                     -                     -                     107.05              

 Projects Temporarily Suspended 

 Less than 1 
Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
 More than 3 
Years Total

 Projects in Progress 107.05             107.05

 Projects Temporarily Suspended 

Particular

Amount for a period of

To be completed in
Particular
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Previous Year

 Less than 1 
Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
 More than 3 
Years Total

 Projects in Progress 107.05             -                     -                     -                     107.05              

 Projects Temporarily Suspended 

 Less than 1 
Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
 More than 3 
Years Total

 Projects in Progress -                      

 Projects Temporarily Suspended 

Particular
To be completed in

Particular
Amount for a period of
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   1

(a)
Trishneet Arora Director
Charanjit Singh Director
Shivani Arora Relative of Directors
Avneet Singh Relative of Directors
Tac Security Private Limited
Oneiric Gaming Private Limited
Tac Security Private Limited

(b)

Name Nature of Transaction 2023-24 2022-23

Trishneet Arora Director's Remunaration 45.00                        54.00                                 
Trishneet Arora Loan provided to Director 23.27                        -                                      
Trishneet Arora Interest on Loan received from Director 0.65                           -                                      
Charanjit Singh Director's Remunaration 9.60                           9.60                                    
Charanjit Singh Payable to Director 0.45                           -                                      
Charanjit Singh Advance for expense -                             28.01                                 
Charanjit Singh Loan provided to Director 45.06                        -                                      
Charanjit Singh Interest on Loan received from Director 1.46                           -                                      
Avneet Singh Salary & Bonus to Relative of Director 24.00                        -                                      
Avneet Singh Advance for expense -                             0.09                                    
Liberal TV Private Limited Advances for Expenses -                             26.26                                 
Tac Security Private Limited Advance provided for expenses 15.41                        1.44                                    
TAC Security INC Investment in Subisidiary 0.84                           -                                      
TAC Security INC Receivable from subsidiary 953.42                      -                                      
Oneiric Gaming Private Limited Advance provided , director having significant influence 3.56                           0.43                                    
Shivani Arora Salary to Relative of Director 5.60                           -                                      

Total                  1,128.34                               119.83 

Transaction with Related Parties:

TAC Infosec Limited
F.Y 2023-24

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Name of Related Parties:
Key Management Personnel

Entity in which Relative of Director have significant influence

 (Rs.in Lakhs) 
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Descripti

ons of 

Iteam of 

property

Gross carrying 

Value

Title deeds 

of 

immovable 

Property 

not held in 

name of 

the 

Company

Wheather 

title deed 

holder is a 

promotor, 

director or 

relative of 

Promotor' 

director or 

employee 

of 

promotors/ 

director

Property 

held since 

which 

date

Reason for not being held in the name 

of company

II

III

(a) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

IV Capital Work In Progress (CWIP)
(a) For Capital-work-in progress, following ageing schedule shall be given

Total

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 Years

More than 

3 years

-                        -                 -                  -              -                                                                             
-                        -                 -                  -               -                                                                             

TAC INFOSEC Limited
Additional Regulatory Information

Title deeds of immovable Property not held in name of the Company

Relevant line 

iteams in the 

Balance 

sheets

Not Applicable

Where the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, the company shall disclose as to whether the

revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of the Companies (Registered

Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017

Not Applicable

where Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as 

defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan and 

Advance in the nature of 

Loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and Advances 

in the nature of loans

Promotors 68.33                                         100
Directors -                                             -

-
-

 
KMPs -                                             -                                                                                                       
Related Parties -                                             -                                                                                                       

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
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TAC INFOSEC Limited

Additional Regulatory Information

Total

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 Years

More than 

3 years

-                        -                 -                  -               -                                                                             
-                        -                 -

-
-                  -               -                                                                             

V Intangible assets under development:
(a) For Intangible assets under development

Total

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 Years

More than 

3 years

107.05 -                 -                  -               -                                                                             
-                        -                 -                  -               -                                                                             

(b) Intangible assets under development completion schedule
Total

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 Years

More than 

3 years

107.05                -                 -                  -               -                                                                             
-                        -                 -                  -               -                                                                             

VI

VII

VIII

IX Relationship with Struck off Companies - Not Applicable

x

XI

XII

XIII Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

CWIP

To be Completed in

(b) For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan,

following

Where the Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of current assets - Yes

Projects-1
Projects - 2

Instangible Assets under 

Development

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Projects-1
Projects - 2

Instangible Assets under 

Development

To be Completed in

Projects-1
Projects - 2

Details of Benami Property held - Not Applicable

(a)   whether quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in 

agreement with the books of accounts - Yes

(b) if not, summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies, if any to be adequately disclosed

Wilful Defaulter -  Not Applicable

a. Date of declaration as wilful defaulter,
b. Details of defaults (amount and nature of defaults),

Borrowed funds have been utilised for day to day working capital purpose

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements - Not Applicable

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies -  Not Applicable

Where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period, details and

reasons thereof shall be disclosed.

Compliance with number of layers of companies - Not Applicable

REPORT Page 98

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-



XIV. Ratios

Numerator Denominator

Current 

Reporting 

Period

Previous 

reporting 

period

Changes

Current Assets Current Liabilities 4.05 3.54 14.58%

Debt Capital Shareholder's Equity 0.12 0.03 369.12%

EBITDA-CAPEX
Debt Service 

(Int+Principal)
3.39                       15.20                    -77.67%

Profit for the year 
Average Shareholder’s 

Equity
57.84% 98.21% -41.11%

COGS Average Inventory NA NA NA

Net Sales
Average trade 

receivables
1.47                       3.16                       -53.36%

Total Purchases 

(Fuel Cost + 

Other 

Expenses+Closin

g Inventory-

Opening 

Inventory)

Closing Trade Payables NA NA NA

Sales Working capital (CA-CL) 1.12                       1.61                       -30.15%

Net Profit Sales 53.45% 50.77% 5.28%

Earnings before 

interest and tax
Capital Employed 44.84% 64.52% -30.50%

Net Profit Investment NA NA NA

Reasons for change

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Trade Receivables turnover ratio

TAC INFOSEC Limited

In F.Y. 2022-23 there was nominal utilisation of debt. During the year working caital of rs 150 Lacs was 

sanctioned and same was utilised, hence Debt equity ratio has increase by 369.12%

Due to utlisation of debt in the current year as compared to previous year nominal utlisatioin of debt, 

Debt Service coverage ratio has decreased by  77.67%

Net profit for F.Y. 2022-23 was significantly high which raised accumulated share holder's fund for 

Current financial year. Further opening share holder's fund in F.Y. 2022-23 was lower then that in 

current year hence it lead to change in Return on Equity Ratio by  41.11 % and Return on capital 

employed changed by 30.50%

Change in trade receivable turnover ratio and Net capital turnover is on account of billing done close to 

year end for which payment is not due at end of the year as per agreed terms. Hence it lead to change 

in ratios by 53.36% and 30.15% respectively

Net profit ratio

Return on Capital employed 

Return on investment

Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Debt Equity Ratio

Debt Service coverage ratio

Current Ratio 

Ratios and Justifications

Return on Equity Ratio

Inventory Turnover Ratio
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